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CCCCCooooonnnnnsssssooooollllliiiiidddddaaaaattttteeeeeddddd FFFFFiiiiinnnnnaaaaannnnnccccciiiiiaaaaalllll SSSSStttttaaaaattttteeeeemmmmmeeeeennnnntttttsssss aaaaannnnnddddd NNNNNooooottttteeeeesssss

(1) Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in millions of yen)
As of

March 31, 2024
As of

March 31, 2025

Assets:
Cash and due from banks (Note 4) 90,142,381 90,453,900
Call loans and bills bought 1,500,879 1,860,949
Receivables under resale agreements (Note 2) 5,494,478 6,764,269
Receivables under securities borrowing transactions (Note 2) 1,094,957 796,134
Monetary claims bought (Note 2) 5,053,642 4,578,766
Trading assets (Note 2 and 4) 7,865,141 8,154,337
Money held in trust 39,021 624,178
Securities (Notes 1, 2, 3, 4 and 12) 70,152,979 69,751,514
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6) 114,311,204 119,221,145
Foreign exchanges (Notes 2 and 3) 2,218,116 1,738,797
Other assets (Notes 3 and 4) 13,602,034 14,261,951
Tangible fixed assets (Notes 4, 8 and 9): 904,799 926,087
Buildings 223,369 225,837
Land (Note 7) 532,973 520,710
Lease assets 9,429 4,409
Construction in progress 28,758 32,080
Other tangible fixed assets 110,268 143,049

Intangible fixed assets: 863,887 918,559
Software 331,734 384,354
Goodwill 145,562 173,851
Lease assets 1 0
Other intangible fixed assets 386,588 360,353

Net defined benefit assets 1,280,486 1,477,710
Deferred tax assets 129,495 73,538
Customers’liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (Note 3) 10,608,663 11,069,146
Allowance for credit losses (1,401,027) (1,064,582)

Total assets 323,861,142 331,606,405
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(in millions of yen)
As of

March 31, 2024
As of

March 31, 2025

Liabilities:
Deposits 211,083,905 214,706,827
Negotiable certificates of deposit 11,184,279 11,647,851
Call money and bills sold (Note 4) 693,411 784,502
Payables under repurchase agreements (Note 4) 19,024,100 26,153,500
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 4) 83,784 136,199
Commercial papers 2,807,589 3,062,422
Trading liabilities 3,871,531 3,673,707
Borrowed money (Notes 4, 5 and 10) 35,561,966 30,505,881
Foreign exchanges (Note 2) 3,429,677 2,423,534
Short-term bonds payable - 144,000
Bonds payable (Notes 4 and 11) 1,863,371 1,705,304
Other liabilities 9,278,666 10,766,953
Reserve for bonuses 134,418 134,348
Reserve for bonuses to directors 1,903 1,772
Reserve for stocks payment 4,597 4,423
Net defined benefit liabilities 93,352 95,432
Reserve for retirement benefits to directors 507 577
Reserve for loyalty award credits 11,522 682
Reserve for contingent losses (Note 13) 86,213 76,429
Reserves under special laws - 3,378
Deferred tax liabilities 150,498 192,440
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation (Note 7) 82,942 81,148
Acceptances and guarantees 10,608,663 11,069,146
Total liabilities 310,056,904 317,370,466

Net assets:
Capital stock 1,711,958 1,711,958
Capital surplus 3,660,984 3,582,916
Retained earnings 5,875,223 6,210,975
Treasury stock (645,700) (645,700)
Total shareholders’equity 10,602,466 10,860,150
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 1,370,832 1,211,686
Net deferred gains (losses) on hedging instruments (767,470) (916,759)
Land revaluation excess (Note 7) 162,441 156,189
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,524,323 1,883,608
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 376,402 440,903
Net unrealized gains (losses) on loans of foreign subsidiaries and affiliates - 3,457
Total accumulated other comprehensive income 2,666,528 2,779,086
Subscription rights to shares 0 11
Non-controlling interests 535,243 596,689
Total net assets 13,804,238 14,235,938

Total liabilities and net assets 323,861,142 331,606,405

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(2) Consolidated Statements of Income and Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Income

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025

Ordinary income 8,484,706 9,707,408
Interest income 6,007,186 6,714,011
Interest on loans and bills discounted 3,696,820 3,859,401
Interest and dividends on securities 843,410 1,205,553
Interest on call loans and bills bought 31,519 31,826
Interest on receivables under resale agreements 273,625 298,113
Interest on receivables under securities borrowing transactions 51,659 60,510
Interest on deposits 520,465 565,373
Other interest income 589,684 693,232

Fees and commissions 1,115,580 1,282,912
Trading income 192,345 164,215
Other operating income 588,263 558,152
Other ordinary income 581,329 988,116
Reversal of allowance for credit losses - 107,208
Gains on loans written-off 75,872 85,399
Others (Note 1) 505,457 795,507

Ordinary expenses 7,134,428 7,950,896
Interest expenses 3,862,170 4,185,392
Interest on deposits 1,809,120 1,963,174
Interest on negotiable certificates of deposit 469,971 503,628
Interest on call money and bills sold 2,017 3,958
Interest on payables under repurchase agreements 564,443 575,016
Interest on payables under securities lending transactions 2,857 3,226
Interest on commercial papers 145,698 137,072
Interest on borrowed money 411,884 454,545
Interest on short-term bonds payable - 187
Interest on bonds payable 93,629 93,142
Other interest expenses 362,547 451,440

Fees and commissions 201,289 244,751
Other operating expenses 479,351 926,063
General and administrative expenses (Note 2) 1,928,214 2,087,060
Other ordinary expenses 663,402 507,629
Provision for allowance for credit losses 352,057 -
Others (Note 3) 311,344 507,629

Ordinary profits 1,350,277 1,756,511
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(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025
Extraordinary gains 14,359 63,029

Gains on disposition of fixed assets 14,359 15,253
Reversal of reserve for contingent liabilities from
financial instruments transactions - 16

Gain on sales of shares of affiliates - 47,759
Extraordinary losses 36,046 74,171

Losses on disposition of fixed assets 11,986 9,262
Losses on impairment of fixed assets 24,059 59,055
Provision for reserve for contingent liabilities
arising from commodities transactions - 0

Losses on step acquisitions - 5,854
Profits before income taxes 1,328,591 1,745,369
Income taxes-current 328,101 270,983
Income taxes-deferred 26,974 197,309
Total taxes 355,075 468,292
Profits 973,515 1,277,077
Profits attributable to non-controlling interests 28,787 45,197
Profits attributable to owners of parent 944,728 1,231,880

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025

Profits 973,515 1,277,077
Other comprehensive income

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 623,613 (156,017)
Net deferred gains (losses) on hedging instruments (294,324) (148,775)
Land revaluation excess － (2,317)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 489,428 372,867
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 247,302 64,872
Net unrealized gains (losses) on loans of foreign subsidiaries － 4,279
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates accounted for using equity method 14,897 18,747
Total other comprehensive income (Note 1) 1,080,917 153,658

Comprehensive income 2,054,433 1,430,735
(Comprehensive income attributable to)

Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent 1,993,768 1,348,374
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 60,664 82,361

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(3) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

(in millions of yen)

Shareholders’equity Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Capital stock Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

Treasury
stock

Total
shareholders’

equity

Net unrealized
gains (losses)

on available-for-
sale securities

Net deferred
gains (losses)
on hedging
instruments

Balance at the beginning of
the fiscal year 1,711,958 3,662,223 5,403,610 (645,700) 10,132,092 743,636 (473,280)

Changes during the fiscal year

Cash dividends (479,181) (479,181)

Profits attributable to
owners of parent 944,728 944,728

Reversal of
land revaluation surplus 6,066 6,066

Changes in
subsidiaries' equity (1,239) (1,239)

Net changes of items other
than shareholders’equity 627,195 (294,190)

Total changes during
the fiscal year - (1,239) 471,613 - 470,373 627,195 (294,190)

Balance at the end of
the fiscal year 1,711,958 3,660,984 5,875,223 (645,700) 10,602,466 1,370,832 (767,470)

(in millions of yen)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Subscription
rights to
shares

Non-
controlling
interests

Total net assetsLand
revaluation
excess

Foreign
currency
translation
adjustments

Remeasurements
of defined
benefit plans

Total
accumulated

other
comprehensive

income
Balance at the beginning of
the fiscal year 168,507 1,055,848 128,840 1,623,554 - 502,941 12,258,588

Changes during the fiscal year

Cash dividends (479,181)

Profits attributable to
owners of parent 944,728

Reversal of
land revaluation surplus 6,066

Changes in
subsidiaries' equity (1,239)

Net changes of items other
than shareholders’equity (6,066) 468,474 247,561 1,042,974 0 32,301 1,075,276

Total changes during
the fiscal year (6,066) 468,474 247,561 1,042,974 0 32,301 1,545,650

Balance at the end of
the fiscal year 162,441 1,524,323 376,402 2,666,528 0 535,243 13,804,238
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For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
(in millions of yen)

Accumulated other
comprehensive income

Capital stock Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

Treasury
stock

Total
shareholders’

equity

Net unrealized
gains (losses)

on
available-for-sale
securities

Net deferred
gains (losses)
on hedging
instruments

Land
revaluation
excess

Balance at the beginning of
the fiscal year 1,711,958 3,660,984 5,875,223 (645,700) 10,602,466 1,370,832 (767,470) 162,441

Changes during the fiscal year

Cash dividends (933,045) (933,045)

Profits attributable to
owners of parent 1,231,880 1,231,880

Reversal of
land revaluation surplus 3,935 3,935

Increase by
corporate division 32,981 32,981

Changes in
subsidiaries' equity (78,067) (78,067)

Net changes of items other
than shareholders' equity (159,145) (149,288) (6,252)

Total changes during
the fiscal year - (78,067) 335,751 - 257,684 (159,145) (149,288) (6,252)

Balance at the end of
the fiscal year 1,711,958 3,582,916 6,210,975 (645,700) 10,860,150 1,211,686 (916,759) 156,189

(in millions of yen)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Subscription
rights to
shares

Non-
controlling
interests

Total net
assets

Foreign
currency
translation
adjustments

Remeasurements
of defined
benefit plans

Net unrealized
gains (losses)
on loans of
foreign

subsidiaries
and affiliates

Total
accumulated

other
comprehensive

income

Balance at the beginning of
the fiscal year 1,524,323 376,402 - 2,666,528 0 535,243 13,804,238

Changes during the fiscal year

Cash dividends (933,045)

Profits attributable to
owners of parent 1,231,880

Reversal of
land revaluation surplus 3,935

Increase by
corporate division 32,981

Changes in
subsidiaries' equity (78,067)

Net changes of items other
than shareholders' equity 359,285 64,501 3,457 112,558 10 61,446 174,015

Total changes during
the fiscal year 359,285 64,501 3,457 112,558 10 61,446 431,699

Balance at the end of
the fiscal year 1,883,608 440,903 3,457 2,779,086 11 596,689 14,235,938

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



9

(4) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profits before income taxes 1,328,591 1,745,369
Depreciation and amortization 214,057 240,989
Impairment losses 24,059 59,055
Amortization of goodwill 8,479 15,487
Equity in losses (gains) of equity method investees (39,203) (50,465)
Increase (decrease) in allowance for credit losses 213,372 (372,431)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for bonuses 21,112 (3,295)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for bonuses to directors (1,263) (255)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for stocks payment 891 (173)
Decrease (increase) in net defined benefit assets (444,742) (34,476)
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liabilities 7,562 1,228
Increase (decrease) in reserve for retirement benefits to directors 44 49
Increase (decrease) in reserve for loyalty award credits (1,333) (11,585)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for contingent losses 3,049 (9,729)
Interest income recognized on statement of income (6,007,186) (6,714,011)
Interest expenses recognized on statement of income 3,862,170 4,185,392
Losses (gains) on securities 90,635 403,113
Losses (gains) on money held in trust 8,016 3,901
Foreign exchange losses (gains) (2,688,689) 120,875
Losses (gains) on sales of fixed assets (2,373) (5,991)
Net decrease (increase) in trading assets (389,370) (132,427)
Net increase (decrease) in trading liabilities 578,077 (265,439)
Adjustment of unsettled trading accounts (339,295) (116,838)
Net decrease (increase) in loans and bills discounted (6,933,234) (4,169,840)
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 7,772,804 2,964,654
Net increase (decrease) in negotiable certificates of deposit 2,192,913 437,874
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings) 602,333 (3,430,269)
Net decrease (increase) in call loans and bills bought and others (1,666,352) (750,005)
Net decrease (increase) in receivables under securities borrowing transactions (138,189) 451,595
Net increase (decrease) in call money and bills sold and others (8,561,411) 6,681,132
Net increase (decrease) in commercial papers 972,620 254,833
Net increase (decrease) in payables under securities lending transactions (138,395) (64,931)
Net decrease (increase) in foreign exchanges (assets) (140,396) 494,118
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchanges (liabilities) 797,769 (1,008,694)
Net increase (decrease) in short-term bonds payable － 43,000
Net increase (decrease) in issuance and redemption of unsubordinated bonds payable (321,572) (134,777)
Interest income (cash basis) 5,801,158 6,606,354
Interest expenses (cash basis) (3,720,402) (4,173,487)
Others (647,023) 721,005
Sub-total (7,680,718) 3,980,903
Income taxes (573,972) (373,013)
Refund of income taxes 56,066 100,951
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (8,198,624) 3,708,841
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(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of securities (77,387,814) (92,573,547)
Proceeds from sales of securities 53,875,134 43,910,073
Proceeds from redemption of securities 28,724,294 48,156,302
Payments for increase in money held in trust (10,069) (175,304)
Proceeds from decrease in money held in trust 9,928 214,028
Purchases of tangible fixed assets (71,749) (71,359)
Purchases of intangible fixed assets (173,207) (181,289)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 44,225 31,513
Proceeds from sales of intangible fixed assets 28 4
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries’equity affecting the scope of consolidation (Note 2) (163,662) (69,486)
Others (1,180) (794)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,845,927 (759,860)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from subordinated borrowings 1,688,702 1,310,920
Repayments of subordinated borrowings (1,494,989) (2,946,576)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated bonds payable and bonds with warrants － 44,000
Payments for redemption of subordinated bonds payable and bonds with warrants (290) (104,357)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock to non-controlling shareholders 2,064 6,045
Dividends paid by MUFG Bank (479,181) (933,045)
Dividends paid by subsidiaries to non-controlling shareholders (8,757) (11,392)
Payments for purchases of subsidiaries’equity not affecting the scope of consolidation (1,592) (107,085)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (294,044) (2,741,490)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1,767,827 91,076
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,878,913) 298,567
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 92,016,699 90,142,381
Increase in cash and cash equivalents resulting from inclusion of subsidiaries in consolidation 4,595 12,951
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Note 1) 90,142,381 90,453,900

See the accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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I. Scope of consolidation

(1) Number of consolidated subsidiaries:117
Principal companies:
Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited ( "Krungsri" )
PT Bank Danamon Indonesia, Tbk. ( "Bank Danamon" )

(a) Changes in the scope of consolidation in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
Mitsubishi UFJ eSmart Securities Co., Ltd. and four other companies were newly included in the scope of
consolidation due to the acquisition of shares or other reasons.
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Partners Co., Ltd. was excluded from the scope of consolidation due to termination
accompanied with a merger.

(2) Non-consolidated subsidiaries: None

(3) Entities not regarded as consolidated subsidiaries even though MUFG Bank, Limited ("the Bank") owns the majority of
voting rights in its own account:

HISHOH Biopharma Co., Ltd.

(a) Reasons for excluding from the scope of consolidation
HISHOH Biopharma Co., Ltd. was not treated as a consolidated subsidiary because the Bank’s consolidated venture
capital subsidiary owned the majority of voting rights primarily to benefit from the appreciation of their investment
resulting from growth or restructuring of the investees’businesses without any intent to control.

(4) Special purpose entities subject to disclosure: None

II. Application of the equity method

(1) Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries accounted for under the equity method: None

(2) Number of equity method affiliates: 46
Principal companies:
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade
Security Bank Corporation

(a) Changes in the scope of application of the equity method in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
eClear Corporation and three other companies were newly included in the scope of application of the equity method
due to acquisition of shares or other reasons.
au Jibun Bank Corporation and one other company were excluded from the scope of application of the equity
method due to the sale of shares or other reason.
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(3) Number of non-consolidated subsidiaries not accounted for under the equity method: None

(4) Number of affiliates not accounted for under the equity method: None

(5) Entities not regarded as affiliates in which the Bank owns 20% to 50% of their voting rights in its own account:
Kamui Pharma, Inc.
Alchemedicine, Inc.

(a) Reasons for excluding from the scope of affiliates
These entities were not regarded as affiliates because the Bank’s consolidated venture capital subsidiaries owned
20% to 50% of voting rights primarily to benefit from the appreciation of their investments resulting from growth or
restructuring of the investees’businesses without any intent to control.

III. The balance sheet dates of the consolidated subsidiaries

(1) The balance sheet dates of the consolidated subsidiaries were as follows:
The end of October: 1 subsidiary
The end of December: 81 subsidiaries
The end of March: 35 subsidiaries

(2) A subsidiary whose balance sheet date is the end of October was consolidated based on its preliminary financial
statements as of the end of January.
As described in "Additional Information (Provisional closing of accounts of a significant consolidated subsidiary),"
from the beginning of the current fiscal year, some of the consolidated subsidiaries whose annual balance sheet date is
the end of December were consolidated based on their preliminary financial statements as of the end of March.
The remaining subsidiaries were consolidated based on their financial statements as of their respective balance sheet
dates.
Adjustments were made to the consolidated financial statements to reflect any significant transactions within the
consolidated group that occurred between the balance sheet dates of the relevant subsidiaries and the consolidated
balance sheet date.
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IV. Accounting policies

(1) Trading assets and Trading liabilities; Trading income and expenses

Transactions involving short-term fluctuations or arbitrage opportunities in interest rates, currency exchange rates, market
prices of financial instruments or other market indices (“trading purposes”) are presented in “Trading assets” and
“Trading liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheet on a trade-date basis, and gains and losses from trading transactions
(interest and dividends, gains or losses on sales and gains or losses on valuation) are presented in “Trading income” and
“Trading expenses” on the consolidated statement of income.

Trading assets and trading liabilities are stated at fair value as of the consolidated balance sheet date.

With respect to derivative transactions for trading purposes, specific market risk and counterparty credit risk exposures are
measured in groups of trading assets and trading liabilities, and fair value is determined for each such group of trading assets
and trading liabilities on a net basis.

(2) Securities

(a) Debt securities being held to maturity are stated at amortized cost (using the straight-line method) computed using the
moving-average method. Available-for-sale securities are stated at their quoted market prices (cost of securities sold is
calculated primarily using the moving-average method), and equity securities with no quoted market price available are
stated at acquisition cost computed using the moving-average method.

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities are included directly in net assets, net of applicable income
taxes, except in the case of application of the fair value hedge accounting method, in which the change in the fair value
recognized is recorded in current earnings.

(b) Securities included in trust assets in money held in trust are accounted for on the same basis as noted above in Notes (1) and
(2)(a).

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities in money held in trust which are not held for trading purposes or held to maturity
are included directly in net assets, net of applicable income taxes.

(3) Derivatives

Derivative transactions (excluding those for trading purposes) are stated at fair value as of the consolidated balance sheet date.
With respect to Derivative transactions (excluding those for trading purposes), specific market risk and counterparty credit risk
exposures are measured in groups of trading assets and trading liabilities, and fair value is determined for each such group of
trading assets and trading liabilities on a net basis.

(4) Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets

(a) Tangible fixed assets (except for lease assets)

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets of the Bank is computed primarily using the declining-balance method. The useful
lives are primarily estimated as follows:

Buildings: 15 to 50 years
Equipment: 2 to 20 years

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets of consolidated subsidiaries is computed primarily using the straight-line method
based on their estimated useful lives.

(b) Intangible fixed assets (except for lease assets)

Amortization of intangible fixed assets is computed using the straight-line method.

Development costs for internally used software are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of primarily 3 to 10 years.
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(c) Lease assets

Depreciation or amortization of lease assets in “Tangible fixed assets” or “Intangible fixed assets” under finance
leases other than those that are deemed to transfer the ownership of leased property to the lessees is computed using the
straight-line method over the lease periods with zero residual value unless residual value is guaranteed by the
corresponding lease contracts, in which case the residual value equals the guaranteed amount.

(5) Deferred assets

Bond issuance costs and stock issuance costs are expensed as incurred.

(6) Allowance for credit losses

The Bank and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries determine the amount of allowance for credit losses in accordance with the
internal standards for self-assessment of asset quality and the internal standards for write-offs and provisions.

For claims on borrowers that have entered into bankruptcy, special liquidation proceedings or similar legal proceedings or
whose notes have been dishonored and suspended from processing through clearing houses (“bankrupt borrowers”) or
borrowers that are not legally or formally bankrupt but are regarded as substantially in similar condition (“virtually bankrupt
borrowers”), allowances are provided based on the amount of claims, after the write-offs as stated below, net of expected
amounts to be collected through the disposal of collateral and the execution of guarantees.

For claims on borrowers that are not yet legally or formally bankrupt but deemed to have a high possibility of becoming
bankrupt (“likely to become bankrupt borrowers”), where the amounts of principal repayments and interest payments cannot
be reasonably estimated from the borrowers’cash flows, allowances are provided based on an overall solvency assessment of
the claims, net of expected amounts to be collected through the disposal of collateral and the execution of guarantees.

For claims on likely to become bankrupt borrowers and claims on borrowers requiring close monitoring, where the amounts of
principal repayments and interest payments can be reasonably estimated from the borrowers’cash flows, allowances are
provided in an amount equal to the difference between the book value of the claims and the relevant cash flows discounted by
the initial contractual interest rates (The cash flow estimation method).

For other claims, allowances are provided based mainly on expected losses for the immediately following one-year period or
the average remaining term to maturity of loans.

Expected losses are calculated by applying a loss rate, which is obtained based on the average rate of historical credit loss
experience or historical default probability experience over a certain period, which is derived from actual credit losses or actual
defaults over a one-year period or over a period equal to the average remaining term to maturity of loans, with necessary
adjustments for future loss projections and other factors.

For claims originated in certain foreign countries, additional allowances are provided based on an assessment of political and
economic conditions of these countries.

All claims are assessed by the relevant branches and the credit supervision departments in accordance with the internal
standards for self-assessment of asset quality. The credit review department, which is independent from those operating
sections, subsequently audits these assessments.

For claims on bankrupt borrowers and virtually bankrupt borrowers, the amount of claims exceeding the estimated value of
collateral and guarantees, which is deemed uncollectible, is written off. The total amount of write-offs was ¥172,611 million (¥
192,692 million as of March 31, 2024).

Consolidated subsidiaries not adopting the procedures stated above provide for allowances based on their historical credit loss
experience or other factors for collectively assessed claims and based on individual assessments of the possibility of collection
for specific deteriorated claims.
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(Additional information)
(Allowance for credit losses of certain overseas subsidiaries which apply IFRS Accounting Standards (“IFRS”))

Certain overseas subsidiaries which apply IFRS recognize allowance for credit losses in accordance with IFRS9 “Financial
Instruments.” At each reporting date, these subsidiaries assess whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, and if the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
subsidiaries measure the allowance for credit losses for the financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit loss.

On the other hand, if the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the subsidiaries
measure the allowance for credit losses for the financial asset at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.

Expected credit losses are calculated collectively for each portfolio of loans with similar risk characteristics based on the loss
rates derived from past credit loss experience or bankruptcy experience through the application of a quantitative model that
incorporates future forecast information, such as macroeconomic variables, into the probability of bankruptcy, etc. Expected
credit losses on some credit-impaired financial assets are calculated individually by taking into account the risks particular to
each such financial asset.

In addition, adjustments are made in the calculation of expected credit losses for qualitative factors relating to current
conditions and future forecasts which may not be sufficiently captured in such model but should be appropriately taken into
account. Future uncertainties due to changes in the economic environment, prices, monetary and trade policies, geopolitical
situations, etc. are factored into estimates for the expected credit loss provisioning through such adjustments based on
macroeconomic variables and/or qualitative factors.

(7) Reserve for bonuses

Reserve for bonuses, which is provided for future bonus payments to employees, is recorded in the amount deemed to have
accrued based on the estimated amount of bonuses as of the consolidated balance sheet date.

(8) Reserve for bonuses to directors

Reserve for bonuses to directors, which is provided for future bonus payments to directors, is recorded in the amount deemed
to have accrued based on the estimated amount of bonuses as of the consolidated balance sheet date.

(9) Reserve for stocks payment

Reserve for stocks payment, which is provided primarily for future payments of compensation under the stock compensation
plan for directors and officers, and for future deliveries of shares under the share-based compensation plan for eligible
employees, of the Bank and certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries, is recorded in the amount deemed to have accrued
based on the estimated amount of such compensation and shares, etc. as of the consolidated balance sheet date.

(10) Reserve for retirement benefits to directors

Reserve for retirement benefits to directors, which is provided for future payments of retirement benefits to directors of
consolidated subsidiaries, is recorded in the amount deemed to have accrued based on the estimated amount of benefits as of
the consolidated balance sheet date.

(11) Reserve for loyalty award credits

Reserve for loyalty award credits, which is provided for the future redemption of points awarded to customers of certain
consolidated subsidiaries is calculated by estimating the amount that will be redeemed in the future based on the monetary
amount converted from the awarded but unused points, and is recorded in the appropriate amount as a reserve.

(12) Reserve for contingent losses

Reserve for contingent losses, which is provided for possible losses from contingent events related to off-balance sheet
transactions and various litigation and regulatory matters, is calculated by estimating the impact of such contingent events.
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(13) Reserves under special laws
(a) Reserve for Financial Instruments Transaction Liabilities

Reserve under special laws includes the amount of reserve for contingent liabilities from derivative financial instruments
transactions executed for clients, which is recorded in accordance with Article 46-5-1 of the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Law and Article 175 of the Cabinet Office Ordinance on Financial Instruments Business.

(b) Reserve for Commodity Futures Transactions
Reserve under special laws includes the amount of reserve for contingent liabilities for losses arising from misconduct in
connection with commodity derivatives brokerage trading, which amount is recorded in accordance with Article 111 of the
Regulations for Enforcement of the Commodity Derivatives Transactions Act promulgated under Article 221 of the Act.

(14) Retirement benefits

In calculating the amount of benefit obligation, the portion of projected benefit obligation attributed to the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2025 is determined using the benefit formula basis.

Prior service cost is amortized using the straight-line method over a fixed period, primarily over 10 years, within the
employees’average remaining service period.

Net actuarial gains (losses) are amortized using the straight-line method over a fixed period, primarily over 10 years, within the
employees’average remaining service period, primarily beginning in the subsequent fiscal year after such gains (losses) are
recognized.

For certain overseas branches of the Bank and certain consolidated subsidiaries, net defined benefit liability and retirement
benefit expenses are calculated using the simplified method.

(15) Revenue Recognition

(a) Revenue recognition
Revenues arising from contracts with customers are recognized in the consolidated statements of income based on the status
of fulfillment of the performance obligations identified in each contract, depending on the actual nature of the transactions
under the contract.

(b) Revenue Recognition for Principal Categories of Transactions
Revenue arising from contracts with customers is recognized using a method that is designed to closely reflect economic
reality, with the timing of fulfillment of performance obligations, which is an important factor in determining the timing of
revenue recognition, assessed as described below.

In most cases, the consideration for transactions is settled in cash at the time of the transaction. In other cases, receivables
recognized in connection with transactions are generally collected within one year.

Of the fees and commissions, those on remittances and transfers consist mainly of remittance and transfer fees and are
recognized as revenue at the time of settlement.

Of the fees and commissions, those on deposits consist mainly of ATM usage fees and periodic account management
service fees. ATM usage fees are recognized as revenue at the time of execution of transactions, and periodic account
management service fees are recorded as revenue over the service period.

Of the fees and commissions, those on loans consist mainly of the consideration for administration and management
services during the tenors of syndicated loans and the consideration for financial advice to clients, and are recorded as
revenue over the service period.

Of the fees and commissions, those on securities-related services consist primarily of consideration for referral of the
Bank’s customers to securities companies and transaction mediation services and revenue is recognized at the point in time
when the related services are provided to the Bank’s customers by the securities company.
Of the fees and commissions, those on credit card business consist mainly of credit card merchant fees and royalty fees
from franchised merchants. Merchant fees are recorded as revenue at the time when the credit sale data is received, and
royalty fees from franchised merchants are recorded as revenue over the service period.
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(16) Translation of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies or booked at overseas branches of the Bank are translated into yen
primarily at exchange rates prevailing at the consolidated balance sheet date, except for investments in non-consolidated
affiliates which are translated into yen at exchange rates prevailing at the acquisition dates.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies of consolidated subsidiaries are translated into yen at exchange rates
prevailing at the respective balance sheet date.

(17) Leasing transactions

(As lessees)

The Bank’s and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries’finance leases other than those that are deemed to transfer the
ownership of leased property to the lessees are accounted for in a similar way to purchases, and depreciation of lease assets
is computed using the straight-line method over the lease term with zero residual value unless residual value is guaranteed by
the corresponding lease contracts, in which case the residual value equals the guaranteed amount.

(As lessors)

Finance leases other than those that are deemed to transfer the ownership of leased property to the lessees are accounted for
in a similar way to sales and income and expenses related to such leases are recognized by allocating interest equivalents to
applicable fiscal periods instead of recording sales as “Other ordinary income”.

(18) Hedge accounting

(a) Hedge accounting for interest rate risks

The Bank has adopted the deferred hedge accounting method for hedging transactions to hedge interest rate risks arising
from financial assets and liabilities. Portfolio hedging or individual hedging, as described in the Japanese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“JICPA”) Industry Committee Practical Guidelines No. 24, “Treatment of Accounting
and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments in Banking Industry” (March 17, 2022),
and the Accounting Standards Board of Japan Transferred Guidance No.9, “Practical Guidelines on the Accounting for
Financial Instruments” (March 11, 2025), is primarily applied to determine hedged items.

With respect to hedging transactions to offset fluctuations in the fair value of fixed rate deposits, loans and other
instruments, hedging instruments (e.g., interest rate swaps) are designated to hedged items individually or collectively by
their maturities in accordance with JICPA Industry Committee Practical Guidelines No. 24. With respect to hedging
transactions to offset fluctuations in the fair value of fixed rate bonds classified as available-for-sale securities, hedging
instruments (e.g., interest rate swaps) are designated to hedged items collectively by the type of bond. Since material terms
related to hedged items and hedging instruments are substantially identical, and such hedging transactions are deemed
highly effective, the assessment of effectiveness is based on the similarity of the terms.

With respect to hedging transactions to fix the cash flows of forecasted transactions related to floating rate deposits, loans
and other instruments as well as forecasted transactions related to short-term fixed rate deposits, loans and other
instruments, hedging instruments (e.g., interest rate swaps) are designated to hedged items collectively by interest rate
indices and tenors in accordance with JICPA Industry Committee Practical Guidelines No. 24. Since material terms related
to hedged items and hedging instruments are substantially identical, and such hedging transactions are deemed highly
effective, the assessment of effectiveness is based on the similarity of the terms. The effectiveness of hedging transactions
is also assessed by the correlation between factors that cause fluctuations in interest rates of hedged items and those of
hedging instruments.
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(b) Hedge accounting for foreign currency risks

The Bank has adopted the deferred hedge accounting method for hedging foreign currency risks arising from financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. Portfolio hedging is applied to determine hedged items as described
in JICPA Industry Committee Practical Guidelines No. 25 “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing concerning
Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions in the Banking Industry” (October 8, 2020). Hedging instruments (e.g.,
currency swaps and forward exchange contracts) are designated to hedged items collectively by currencies.

Portfolio hedging or individual hedging is applied to hedge foreign currency risks arising from equity investments in
foreign subsidiaries and foreign affiliates and from available-for-sale securities (other than bonds) denominated in foreign
currencies. Monetary claims and liabilities denominated in the same foreign currencies or forward exchange contracts are
used as hedging instruments. As for the hedge accounting method applied to equity investments in foreign subsidiaries and
foreign affiliates, foreign currency translation differences arising from hedging instruments are recorded as foreign
currency translation adjustments. The fair value hedge accounting method is applied to available-for-sale securities (other
than bonds) denominated in foreign currencies.

(c) Hedge accounting for stock price fluctuation risks

Individual hedging is applied to hedge market fluctuation risks arising from strategic equity securities held by the Bank.
Total return swaps are used as hedging instruments. The effectiveness of hedging transactions is assessed by the correlation
between changes in the fair value of hedged items and changes in the fair value of hedging instruments. The fair value
hedge accounting method is applied.

(d) Transactions among consolidated subsidiaries

Derivative transactions including interest rate swaps and currency swaps which are designated as hedging instruments
among consolidated subsidiaries or between trading accounts and other accounts (or among internal sections) are not
eliminated from the consolidated statements of income or valuation difference, but are recognized as related gains or losses
or deferred under hedge accounting because these derivative transactions meet non-arbitrariness and certain other criteria
under JICPA Industry Committee Practical Guidelines No. 24 and No. 25 and are regarded as equivalent to external
third-party cover transactions.

(19) Amortization of goodwill

Goodwill was primarily amortized using the straight-line method from 10 to 20 years beginning in the period of the acquisition.
Other goodwill with insignificant balance was expensed as incurred.

(20) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are defined as “Cash and due from banks” on the
consolidated balance sheet.

(21) Consumption taxes

National and local consumption taxes are excluded from transaction amounts of the Bank and its domestic consolidated
subsidiaries. Non-deductible portions of consumption taxes on the purchases of tangible fixed assets are expensed when
incurred.

(22) Adoption of the Group Tax Sharing System

The Bank and some of its domestic consolidated subsidiaries apply the group tax sharing system in which Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group is the tax sharing parent company.
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(23) Accounting of bills discounted and rediscounted

Bills discounted and rediscounted are accounted for as financial trading in accordance with JICPA Industry Committee
Practical Guidelines No. 24

(24) Accounting standard for foreign subsidiaries

If the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries are prepared in accordance with IFRS or U.S. GAAP, such financial
statements are used in the consolidated accounting process.

Adjustments are also made when necessary in the consolidated accounting process.
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SSSSSiiiiigggggnnnnniiiiifffffiiiiicccccaaaaannnnnttttt AAAAAccccccccccooooouuuuunnnnntttttiiiiinnnnnggggg EEEEEssssstttttiiiiimmmmmaaaaattttteeeeesssss

I. Allowance for credit losses

(1) Amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the current fiscal year

The Bank and its banking subsidiaries(“The Group”) are engaged in lending services as one of our core businesses. To
absorb probable losses resulting from decreases in or elimination of the value of assets such as loan receivables due to
deterioration in the financial condition of parties to which loans and other forms of credit have been extended (the risk of
incurring such losses being referred to as "credit risk" within the Group), an allowance for credit losses is recorded according to
the calculation process prescribed in our internal policies. The amount of allowance for credit losses recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet as of the end of the current fiscal year is ¥1,064,582 million(¥1,401,027 million as of March 31,
2024).

The allowance for credit losses is determined in accordance with predetermined internal policies and approved by the Credit
Committee under the Executive Committee. In addition, independent credit audit departments audit the evaluation results as
described in “(6) Allowance for credit losses” under “IV. Accounting policies” under “1. Significant Accounting
Policies Applied to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”
There is uncertainty in the estimates and significant assumptions used in calculating the allowance for credit losses. In
particular, future developments concerning the Russia-Ukraine situation and the trade policies of various countries, which are
expected to impact our borrowers’operating environment and the economic environment, remain subject to significant
uncertainty. Accordingly, we make certain assumptions, including that the current Russia-Ukraine situation continues for the
foreseeable future and that the trade policies of various countries, while being subject to policy and other changes over the
short term, will generally be implemented with consideration for economic and price trends. The recorded allowance represents
our best estimate made based on such assumptions and in a manner designed to ensure objectivity and rationality.

(2) Other information which is relevant to the understanding of the readers of the consolidated financial statements with regard to
the accounting estimates

(Allowance for credit losses of the Bank and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries)
(a) Method of calculation of the amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the current fiscal year

The process of calculating the allowance for credit losses for the Bank and principal domestic consolidated banking
subsidiaries, involves various estimates such as determination of borrower credit ratings which are based on evaluation and
classification of borrowers' debt-service capacity, assessment of the value of collateral provided by borrowers, estimation of
future cash flows when applying the cash flow estimation method, and adjustments for future loss projections and other
factors to the loss rates calculated based on historical credit loss experience. For details of the allowance calculation
method, refer to “(6) Allowance for credit losses” under “IV. Accounting policies” under “1. Significant
Accounting Policies Applied to the Consolidated Financial Statements.” The amount of allowance for credit losses and
the loan balance of the Bank and our principal domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries, recorded in the Bank’s balance
sheet as of the end of the current fiscal year, are ¥530,929 million and ¥107,742,591 million, respectively (¥841,518
million and ¥103,444,984 million, respectively as of March 31, 2024).

(b) Significant assumptions used in calculating the amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements for the current
fiscal year
In order to make appropriate borrower classification determinations, the Bank and its domestic consolidated banking
subsidiaries use a credit rating system that is consistent with the borrower classification as a uniform standard for evaluating
credit risk. As a general rule, internal credit ratings are assigned to all customers to which we extend credit and their
transactions. Among our internal credit ratings, the borrower ratings for non-financial business corporations and certain
other borrowers are assigned based on our evaluation of their debt-service capacity over the next 3 to 5 years on a 15-rating
scale. Our principal domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries assign internal credit ratings to borrowers based on
qualitative factors such as the current and expected future business environment of the industry to which borrowers belong
as well as their management and funding risks in addition to quantitative financial evaluations through an analysis of their
financial results. In this regard, our internal credit ratings may be highly dependent on estimation of borrowers' future
performance and business sustainability in case they experience poor business performance or financial
difficulties. Estimates relating to these borrowers' future performance and business sustainability are affected by changes
in their external and internal business environment, including changes in the economic condition, inflation and monetary
and trade policies in each country as well as the geopolitical situation, and are accordingly subject to a high degree of
uncertainty.
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The Bank and our principal domestic consolidated banking subsidiaries apply the cash flow estimation method when
determining allowance for credit losses for loans to substantially bankrupt borrowers and borrowers requiring special
attention and caution in cases where it is possible to reasonably estimate the cash flows related to the collection of loan
principal and receipt of interest payments.
The estimation of such future cash flows is based on a borrower-specific assessment regarding the collectability of loans,
including past collection experience, evaluation of the borrower’s restructuring plans, the financial condition and operating
results of the borrower, and the economic environment of the industry to which the borrower belongs. In this regard, the
estimation of future cash flows may be highly dependent on estimation of borrowers’future performance and business
sustainability. Estimates are subject to a high degree of uncertainly especially when made in connection with assessments
regarding the collectability of loans to substantially bankrupt borrowers with respect to which objective information is not
readily available.
In addition, the Bank determines loss rates primarily by calculating a rate of loss based on a historical average of the credit
loss rate or a historical average of the default probability derived from actual credit loss experience or actual bankruptcy
experience and making necessary adjustments based on future projections and other factors.
The Bank makes such adjustments to the loss rates calculated based on historical loss experience, taking into account future
projections and other factors, especially considering the uncertain business environment arising from potential changes in
the Russia-Ukraine situation and the trade policies of various countries. These adjustments are made when deemed
necessary, for example, by considering any additional expected loss amount not captured by the loss rates calculated based
on historical loss experience. The amount of impact of these adjustments as of the end of the current fiscal year is ¥33,610
million(¥42,492 million as of March 31, 2024).
Since these adjustments for future loss projections and other factors to loss rates calculated based on historical loss
experience, which are made to reflect the credit risk for loans and other assets held as of the end of the fiscal year, are based
on estimation relating to the impact of future developments concerning the Russia-Ukraine situation and the trade policies
of various countries on the economic environment with respect to which objective information is not readily available, the
resulting estimates are subject to a high degree of uncertainty.

(c) Effect on the consolidated financial statements for the following fiscal year
The internal credit ratings and the estimates of future cash flows when applying the cash flow estimation method are
reviewed at least once a year. Estimates relating to borrowers' future performance, business sustainability and the
collectability of loans, which we consider to be significant assumptions, may be reviewed in light of changes in borrowers’
creditworthiness due to changes in their financial condition and in the relevant industry environment. As a result, the
allowance for credit losses may significantly increase or decrease in the following fiscal year if the overall credit risk is
deemed to have increased or decreased.
Adjustments based on future loss projections and other factors to loss rates calculated based on historical loss experience,
which we consider to be significant assumptions, are based on estimation relating to future developments concerning the
Russia-Ukraine situation and the trade policies of various countries with respect to which objective information is not
readily available. These assumptions change to reflect actual developments in the Russia-Ukraine situation, and the trade
policies of various countries, and changes in the assumptions may result in a significant increase or decrease in the
allowance for credit losses in the following fiscal year.

(Allowance for credit losses of certain overseas subsidiaries which apply IFRS)

(a) Method of calculation of the amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the current fiscal year
Certain overseas subsidiaries which apply IFRS recognize allowance for credit losses in accordance with IFRS9
“Financial Instruments.” At each reporting date, these subsidiaries assess whether the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition, and if the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the subsidiaries measure the allowance for credit losses for the financial asset at an amount equal to the 12-month expected
credit loss. On the other hand, if the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
subsidiaries measure the allowance for credit losses for the financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
loss. For details of the allowance provision method, refer to Additional Information in “(6) Allowance for credit losses”
under “IV. Accounting policies” under “1. Significant Accounting Policies Applied to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.” The amount of allowance for credit losses and the loan balance recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as
of the end of the current fiscal year with respect to our principal overseas subsidiaries that apply IFRS are ¥387,207
million and ¥6,430,302 million, respectively (¥418,919 million and ¥6,336,261 million, respectively as of March 31, 2024).
Krungsri, the principal overseas subsidiary of the Bank that applies IFRS, adopted IFRS as of the beginning of the current
fiscal year instead of U.S. GAAP which Krungsri previously applied. For details, refer to “Changes in Accounting
Policies (Adoption of IFRS by a consolidated foreign subsidiary)”
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(b) Significant assumptions used in calculating the amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements for the current
fiscal year
Expected credit losses of our principal overseas subsidiaries that apply IFRS are calculated for each portfolio of loans
with similar risk characteristics using a quantitative model that reflects economic forecast scenarios based on
macroeconomic variables. Macroeconomic variables include the unemployment rate, GDP and other inputs, which
correlate with historical credit losses. The subsidiaries use multiple economic forecast scenarios in light of the uncertainty
in such scenarios and consider such scenarios by applying certain weightings. Various factors, such as the latest economic
environment and the views of internal and external economists, are taken into account in the determination of the
macroeconomic variables reflected in such economic forecast scenarios and the weightings applied to each economic
forecast scenario. In this regard, the estimates made in determining such macroeconomic variables reflected in multiple
economic forecast scenarios and the weightings applied to each economic forecast scenario are subject to a high degree of
uncertainty due to the significant variability and uncertainty in the future economic environment arising mainly from
changes in the economic condition, inflation and monetary and trade policies in each country as well as the geopolitical
situation.
The calculated amount of expected credit losses is adjusted for qualitative factors to compensate for expected credit losses
that are not reflected in a quantitative model. The subsidiaries forecast the impact of inflation and temporary relief measure
on the expected credit losses determined using quantitative models and reflect adjustments based on such qualitative
factors. These qualitative adjustments are estimates with respect to which objective information is not readily available and
are similarly subject to a high degree of uncertainty.

(c) Effect on the consolidated financial statements for the following fiscal year
The determination of macroeconomic variables to be reflected in multiple economic forecast scenarios and the weighting to
be assigned to each such scenario, as well as the application of adjustments based on qualitative factors, are based on
estimates relating to the economic environment and other factors with respect to which objective information is not readily
available. Relevant assumptions may change to reflect developments in the economic environment and other factors and, as
a result, the amount of allowance for credit losses.

II. Fair value of derivative transactions

(1) Amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the current fiscal year

The Group engages in a large number of various derivative transactions in connection with the business of providing foreign
exchange, financing and securities services to customers as well as market transactions and liquidity and funding management
operations. For details of the fair value of derivative transactions grouped by transaction type, refer to “II. Matters concerning
fair value of financial instruments and breakdown by input level” under “8. Financial Instruments.”

The fair value of derivative transactions is calculated in accordance with the policies and procedures for the calculation of fair
value and the procedures for the use of fair value valuation models set forth in predetermined internal policies. The estimates
and significant assumptions made in calculating the fair value of derivative transactions are subject to uncertainty. The
recorded fair value represents our best estimate made in a manner designed to ensure objectivity and rationality and subject to
internal controls. For details of the processes for calculating the fair value of derivative transactions, refer to “I. Disclosure on
financial instruments” and “(Note 1) Description of the valuation techniques and inputs used to determine fair value” to
“II. Matters concerning fair value of financial instruments and breakdown by input level” under “8. Financial
Instruments.”

(2) Other information which is relevant to an understanding by readers of the consolidated financial statements with regard to the
accounting estimates

(a) Method of calculation of the amount recorded in the consolidated financial statements for the current fiscal year
The fair value of exchange-traded derivative transactions is based on the price posted by exchanges. The fair value of
over-the-counter derivative transactions is based on the discounted present value or amount calculated under the
option-price calculation model. The valuation models are tested from a market consistency perspective. However, the
estimates and assumptions used in such models necessarily involve judgment and are subject to complexity and uncertainty.
For details of the calculation method, refer to “(Note 1) Description of the valuation techniques and inputs used to
determine fair value” to “II. Matters concerning fair value of financial instruments and breakdown by input level”
under “8. Financial Instruments.”
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(b) Significant assumptions used in calculating the amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements for the current
fiscal year
Inputs used in valuation models include inputs that can be observed directly or indirectly in the market such as foreign
currency exchange rates, yield curves, volatility, credit curves and stock prices, as well as inputs that cannot be observed in
the market such as correlation coefficients and other significant estimates. The Group classifies the fair value of financial
instruments into three levels depending on the observability and significance of the input used in the fair value calculation.
In particular, the estimates and assumptions made in the valuation of derivative transactions classified as level 3, where
inputs that cannot be observed in the market are used as a material basis for the calculated fair value, are subject to
significant complexity and uncertainty. For details of such inputs, refer to “(1) Quantitative information on significant
unobservable inputs” under “(Note 2) Quantitative information about financial assets and liabilities measured and
presented on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value and classified in Level 3” to “II. Matters concerning fair value
of financial instruments and breakdown by input level” under “8. Financial Instruments.”

(c) Effect on the consolidated financial statements for the following fiscal year
The Group have determined that the fair value of derivatives transactions is reasonable after conducting testing. However,
the significant assumptions used to calculate the fair value are subject to uncertainty. In particular, the estimates and
assumptions made in the valuation of the fair value of derivative transactions classified as Level 3 are subject to significant
complexity and uncertainty. The fair value of derivative transactions held by the Group may fluctuate as a result of changes
in inputs used for valuation due to changes in the market environment and other factors. For details of the sensitivity of the
fair value to changes in inputs, refer to “(4) Description of the sensitivity of the fair value to changes in significant
unobservable inputs” under “(Note 2) Quantitative information about financial assets and liabilities measured and
presented on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value and classified in Level 3” to “II. Matters concerning fair value
of financial instruments and breakdown by input level” under “8. Financial Instruments.”
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CCCCChhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss iiiiinnnnn AAAAAccccccccccooooouuuuunnnnntttttiiiiinnnnnggggg PPPPPooooollllliiiiiccccciiiiieeeeesssss

(Accounting Standard for Corporate Tax, Inhabitant Tax, Enterprise Tax, etc.)
Accounting Standard Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) Statement No. 27, “Accounting Standard for Corporate Tax, Inhabitant Tax,
Enterprise Tax, etc.” (ASBJ, October 28, 2022), has been applied from the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025.
The impact of the change on the Bank's consolidated financial statements is immaterial.

(Adoption of IFRS by a consolidated foreign subsidiary)
The consolidated financial statements of Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited (“Krungsri”), which are used in the Bank’s
consolidated accounting process, had been previously prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, but from the beginning of the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2025, have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.
This change has been made pursuant to the Bank's decision to consolidate Krungsri based on a provisional closing of its accounts
through the system put in place to prepare Krungsri’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS from the
perspective of providing the Bank’s consolidated financial statements in a more timely manner as described in "Provisional closing
of accounts of a significant consolidated subsidiary" under "Additional Information" below. The change is part of the the Bank
Group’s ongoing review of infrastructure and system development in considering adoption of IFRS.
The impact of the change on the Bank's consolidated financial statements and per share information for the previous fiscal year is
immaterial.

NNNNNeeeeewwwww AAAAAccccccccccooooouuuuunnnnntttttiiiiinnnnnggggg PPPPPrrrrrooooonnnnnooooouuuuunnnnnccccceeeeemmmmmeeeeennnnntttttsssss

ASBJ Statement No. 34, “Accounting Standard for Leases” (ASBJ, September 13, 2024), and ASBJ Guidance No. 33,
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Leases” (ASBJ, September 13, 2024), etc.
(1) Summary

In terms of the allocation of expense of lease as lessee, the only accounting treatment approach will be adopted, which is same
as IFRS 16, recognizing the depreciation of right-of-use asset and the amount equative to the interest of lease liability subjected
to all the leases, regardless finance leases or operating leases.

(2) Planned adoption date
The Bank plans to adopt the accounting standards and guidances as of the beginning of the fiscal year starting on April 1, 2027.

(3) Estimated impact
The Bank is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the accounting standards and guidances on its consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures.

AAAAAddddddddddiiiiitttttiiiiiooooonnnnnaaaaalllll IIIIInnnnnfffffooooorrrrrmmmmmaaaaatttttiiiiiooooonnnnn

(Provisional closing of accounts of a significant consolidated subsidiary)
Krungsri, a significant consolidated subsidiary of the Bank, closes its financial accounts based on a fiscal year-end of December 31
and, previously, had been consolidated based on its consolidated financial statements as of the end of each immediately preceding
reporting period. However, from the perspective of providing financial information in a more timely manner, the Bank has decided
to consolidate Krungsri based on a provisional closing of accounts of Krungsri to be implemented as of the Bank’s fiscal year-end,
effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, Krungsri’s financial
results for the fifteen-month period from January 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025 have been consolidated based on a provisional closing
of accounts of Krungsri, and the impact of implementation of such provisional closing of accounts has been reflected through the
Bank’s consolidated statement of income. Concerning Krungsri’s financial results for the period from January 1, 2024 to March 31,
2024, ordinary income was ¥226,537 million, ordinary profits were ¥37,575 million, and profits before income taxes were ¥37,372
million.

(Transaction under Common Control)
The Bank resolved at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on December 27, 2024 to succeed to 100% of the equity interests in
the overseas securities subsidiaries currently held by Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Mitsubishi UFJ Securities
Holdings”) through an absorption-type split (the “Absorption-Type Split”). An absorption-type split agreement was executed
with Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings on January 31, 2025.

I. Overview of the transaction
(1) Names and business description of the succeeded companies

Name of succeeded company Business description

MUFG Securities EMEA plc (*) Securities

MUFG Securities (Canada), Ltd. Securities

MUFG Securities Asia Limited Securities
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(*) As MUFG Securities EMEA plc will be succeeded by the Bank, MUFG Securities (Europe) N.V., MUFG Securities EMEA
plc’s consolidated subsidiary, will also be included in the Bank’s scope of consolidation as of the business combination date.

(2) Date of the business combinations
July 1, 2025 (planned)

(3) Legal form of the business combinations
The Absorption-Type Split designates Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings as the splitting company and the Bank as the successor

company.

(4) Company names after the business combinations
No change

(5) Details of the allotments in connection with the business combinations
As the Absorption-Type Split will be carried out without consideration between the Bank and Mitsubishi UFJ Securities

Holdings, both of which are wholly owned consolidated subsidiaries of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.(“MUFG"), there is
no allotment of shares, or no delivery of cash or other assets, to the splitting company.

(6) Other matters related to the overview of the transaction
In an effort to optimize its overseas business operations infrastructure, MUFG has decided to implement the Absorption-Type

Split, with Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings as the splitting company and the Bank as the successor company. Under this
arrangement, rights and obligations related to the overseas securities businesses administration operated by Mitsubishi UFJ
Securities Holdings will be transferred.

II. Overview of the accounting treatment to be applied
The transaction will be treated as a transaction under common control under ASBJ Statement No. 21, “Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations” (ASBJ, January 16, 2019), and ASBJ Guidance No. 10, “Implementation Guidance on Accounting
Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ, November 1, 2024).
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I. Equity securities and other capital investments in affiliates

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Equity securities in affiliates ¥ 441,172 ¥ 453,287
Other capital investments in affiliates 47,660 115,724

The amount of investments in jointly controlled companies included in the amounts in the above table was as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Investments in jointly controlled companies ¥ 6,900 ¥ 11,096

II. Securities loaned under unsecured and secured securities lending transactions included in “Trading assets” , “Securities”
and “Monetary claims bought”.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Securities loaned under unsecured and secured
securities lending transactions ¥ 274,772 ¥ 395,196

Securities borrowed under securities borrowing transactions and securities purchased under resale agreements where the
borrowers or purchasers have the right to dispose of the securities through sale or re-pledging without any restrictions

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Securities re-pledged ¥ 4,813,858 ¥ 7,332,891
Securities re-loaned 945,727 569,276
Securities held without disposition 8,017,536 8,300,490

Bank acceptance bills discounted, commercial bills discounted, and foreign currency bills bought discounted with the right to
dispose of the bills discounted through sale or re-pledging without any restrictions

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Bills discounted (face value) ¥ 1,506,038 ¥ 891,819

Foreign currency bills bought which were re-discounted upon transfer

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Foreign currency bills re-discounted (face value) ¥ 5,086 ¥ 1,162
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III. Loans to be disclosed under the Banking Act and the Financial Reconstruction Act (the “FRA”) were as follows. Disclosed
loans include corporate bonds included in Securities (to the extent that such bonds were issued through private placements as
stipulated in Article 2-3 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and that the principal of and interest on such bonds are
partly or fully guaranteed by the Bank), Loans and bills discounted, Foreign exchanges, accrued interest and suspense payments
included in Other assets, and Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees, each as included in the consolidated balance
sheets, and securities loaned (to the extent borrowers have the right to sell or pledge such securities) as included in the notes to
the consolidated balance sheets.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Bankrupt or De facto Bankrupt ¥ 231,327 ¥ 291,593
Doubtful ¥ 1,016,863 ¥ 568,659
Special Attention ¥ 568,443 ¥ 469,730
Accruing loans contractually past due 3 months or more ¥ 19,083 ¥ 9,177
Restructured loans ¥ 549,359 ¥ 460,552

Subtotal ¥ 1,816,634 ¥ 1,329,983
Normal ¥ 126,278,777 ¥ 131,664,594
Total ¥ 128,095,411 ¥ 132,994,578

Bankrupt or De facto Bankrupt represents loans to borrowers that are bankrupt or in substantially similar condition due to
reasons including a petition being filed to commence bankruptcy, reorganization or rehabilitation proceedings.

Doubtful represents loans to borrowers that are not yet in a state of bankruptcy but that are in deteriorated financial condition,
with deteriorated operating results, and with a high likelihood of loan principal and interest not being collected or received in
accordance with contractual terms, other than loans included in the Bankrupt or De facto Bankrupt category.

Accruing loans contractually past due 3 months or more represent loans with respect to which principal repayments or interest
payments have been past due for 3 months or more, other than loans included in the Bankrupt or De facto Bankrupt category or
the Doubtful category.

Restructured loans represent loans that have been modified with concessionary terms, including interest rate reductions, deferral
of interest payments, deferral of principal repayments, waivers of loan claims and other renegotiated terms, that are favorable to
borrowers, for the purpose of assisting such borrowers in improving their financial condition, other than loans included in the
Bankrupt or De facto Bankrupt category, the Doubtful category or the Accruing loans contractually past due 3 months or more
category.

Normal represents loans with no particular issues identified in terms of the financial condition and results of operations of
borrowers and thus not included in the Bankrupt or De facto Bankrupt category, the Doubtful category, the Accruing loans
contractually past due 3 months or more category or the Restructured loan category.

The amounts provided in the table above represent gross amounts before deduction of allowance for credit losses.
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IV. Assets pledged as collateral

Assets pledged as collateral and their relevant liabilities as of March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31,
2024

March 31,
2025

Assets pledged as collateral:
Cash and due from banks ¥ 4,292 ¥ 4,583
Securities 8,874,316 884,916
Loans and bills discounted 12,960,188 18,115,643
Other assets 601 170
Tangible fixed assets 92 98
Total ¥ 21,839,491 ¥ 19,005,413

Relevant liabilities to above assets:
Call money and bills sold ¥ － ¥ 88,200
Borrowed money 21,788,305 18,888,440
Bonds payable 21,787 3,885

In addition to the above, the following assets were pledged as collateral for cash settlements and other transactions or as
deposits for margin accounts for futures and other transactions:

(in millions of yen)
March 31,
2024

March 31,
2025

Trading assets ¥ 870,942 ¥ 586,728
Securities 15,663,373 17,319,510
Loans and bills discounted 2,106,136 1,978,273

Furthermore, the following assets were sold under repurchase agreements as of March 31, 2024 and 2025:

(in millions of yen)
March 31,
2024

March 31,
2025

Trading assets ¥ 1,320,749 ¥ 2,152,856
Securities 12,541,758 16,752,840

Total ¥ 13,862,507 ¥ 18,905,697

Relevant liabilities to above assets:
Payables under repurchase agreements ¥ 13,496,680 ¥ 18,439,809
Payables under securities lending transactions － 46

In addition, the following assets were pledged under general collateral repurchase agreements using the subsequent collateral

allocation method as of March 31, 2024 and 2025:

(in millions of yen)
March 31,
2024

March 31,
2025

Trading assets ¥ 10,879 ¥ 14,227
Securities 1,100,570 2,104,014
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V. Non-recourse debt of consolidated special purpose companies was as follows.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Non-recourse debt
Borrowed money ¥ 2,100 ¥ 1,407

Relevant assets to above non-recourse debt:
Loans and bills discounted ¥ 20,000 ¥ 14,500

The above table includes certain assets reported in the immediately preceding Item IV.

VI. Overdraft facilities and commitment lines of credit are binding contracts under which the Bank’s consolidated subsidiaries have
obligations to disburse funds up to predetermined limits upon the borrower’s request as long as there have been no breach of
contracts. The total amount of the unused portion of these facilities as of March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 was as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Unused overdraft facilities and commitment lines of
credit ¥ 95,224,424 ¥ 97,989,798

The total amount of the unused portion does not necessarily represent actual future cash requirements because many of these
contracts are expected to expire without being drawn upon. In addition, most of these contracts include clauses that allow the
Group to decline a borrower’s request for disbursement or decrease contracted limits for cause, such as changes in financial
market condition or deterioration in a borrower’s creditworthiness. The Group may request a borrower to pledge real property
and/or securities as collateral upon signing of a contract and will perform periodic monitoring on a borrower’s business
condition in accordance with internal procedures, which may lead to renegotiation of the terms and conditions of the contracts
and/or initiation of a request for additional collateral and/or guarantees.

VII. In accordance with the “Law concerning Revaluation of Land” (the “Land Revaluation Law”) (No. 34, March 31,
1998), land used for business operations of the Bank has been revalued as of the dates indicated below. The total excess from
revaluation, net of income taxes corresponding to the excess that were recognized as “Deferred tax liabilities for land
revaluation,” is stated as “Land revaluation excess” in net assets.

Date of revaluation: March 31, 1998

The method of revaluation as set forth in Article 3, Paragraph 3 of the “Land Revaluation Law”:

Fair values are determined based on (1) “published land price under the Land Price Publication Law” stipulated in
Article 2-1 of the “Enforcement Ordinance of the Law concerning Revaluation of Land” (“Ordinance”) (No. 119,
March 31, 1998), (2) “standard land price determined on measurement spots under the Enforcement Ordinance of the
National Land Planning Law” stipulated in Article 2-2 of the “Ordinance,” (3) “land price determined by the method
established and published by the Director General of National Tax Agency in order to calculate land value that is used for
determining taxable amounts subject to landholding tax articulated in Article 16 of the Landholding Tax Law” stipulated in
Article 2-4 of the “Ordinance” with price adjustments by shape and time.

VIII. Accumulated depreciation on tangible fixed assets

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Accumulated depreciation on tangible fixed assets ¥ 844,350 ¥ 859,735
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IX. Deferred gains on tangible fixed assets deducted for tax purposes

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Deferred gains on tangible fixed assets ¥ 47,452 ¥ 42,062
Deferred gains on tangible fixed assets for the fiscal year ¥ － ¥ －

X. Subordinated borrowings with special contractual provisions which rank below other debts with regard to the fulfillment of
obligations included in “Borrowed money”

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Subordinated borrowings ¥ 12,369,045 ¥ 10,633,497

XI. Subordinated bonds included in “Bonds payable”

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Subordinated bonds ¥ 480,087 ¥ 436,626

XII. Guarantee obligations for private placement bonds (provided in accordance with the Article 2-3 of the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Law) among the bonds and other securities included in “Securities”

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Guarantee obligations for private placement bonds ¥ 334,872 ¥ 299,223

XIII. Contingent liabilities

(Litigation)

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to various litigation and regulatory matters. In accordance with
applicable accounting guidance, the Group establishes a Reserve for Contingent Losses arising from litigation and regulatory
matters when they are determined to be probable in their occurrences and the probable loss amount can be reasonably
estimated. Based upon current knowledge and consultation with counsel, management believes the eventual outcome of such
litigation and regulatory matters, where losses are probable and the probable loss amounts can be reasonably estimated, would
not have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Management also believes the amount of loss that is reasonably possible, but not probable, from various litigation and
regulatory matters is not material to the Group’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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I. “Other ordinary income” for the periods indicated included the following:

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024 2025

Gains on sales of equity securities ¥ 363,056 ¥ 521,536
Operating income related to a consolidated
subsidiary providing trade finance services 642 120,788

II. “General and administrative expenses” for the periods indicated included the following:

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024 2025

Personnel expenses ¥ 939,247 ¥ 1,004,108
Depreciation and amortization 214,057 240,989

III. “Other ordinary expenses” for the periods indicated included the following:

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024 2025

Write-offs of loans ¥ 96,866 ¥ 181,624
Loss on sales of equity securities 70,881 32,800
Operating expenses related to a consolidated
subsidiary providing trade finance services 623 115,569



32

44444..... CCCCCooooonnnnnsssssooooollllliiiiidddddaaaaattttteeeeeddddd SSSSStttttaaaaattttteeeeemmmmmeeeeennnnnttttt ooooofffff CCCCCooooommmmmppppprrrrreeeeehhhhheeeeennnnnsssssiiiiivvvvveeeee IIIIInnnnncccccooooommmmmeeeee

I. The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
2024 2025

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale
securities:
Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥ 902,512 ¥ (514,303)
Reclassification adjustments to profits (losses) 54,560 289,947
Amount before income taxes and income tax effect 957,072 (224,355)
Income taxes and income tax effect (333,459) 68,338
Total 623,613 (156,017)

Net deferred gains (losses) on hedging instruments:

Gains (losses) arising during the year (669,042) (619,275)
Reclassification adjustments to profits (losses) 247,768 385,667
Amount before income taxes and income tax effect (421,274) (233,607)
Income taxes and income tax effect 126,949 84,832
Total (294,324) (148,775)

Land revaluation excess:
Gains (losses) arising during the year － －

Reclassification adjustments to profits (losses) － －

Amount before income taxes and income tax effect － －

Income taxes and income tax effect － (2,317)
Total － (2,317)

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Gains (losses) arising during the year 489,240 373,892
Reclassification adjustments to profits (losses) 188 (8)
Amount before income taxes and income tax effect 489,428 373,884
Income taxes and income tax effect (0) (1,017)
Total 489,428 372,867

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans:
Gains (losses) arising during the year 394,875 169,930
Reclassification adjustments to profits (losses) (37,663) (67,641)
Amount before income taxes and income tax effect 357,212 102,288
Income taxes and income tax effect (109,909) (37,416)
Total 247,302 64,872

Net unrealized gains (losses) on loans of foreign
subsidiaries:
Gains (losses) arising during the year － 6,132
Reclassification adjustments to profits (losses) － －

Amount before income taxes and income tax effect － 6,132
Income taxes and income tax effect － (1,852)
Total － 4,279

Share of other comprehensive income of associates
accounted for using equity method:
Gains (losses) arising during the year 15,235 16,038
Reclassification adjustments to profits (losses) (338) 2,709
Total 14,897 18,747

Total other comprehensive income ¥ 1,080,917 ¥ 153,658
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For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

I. Information on the class and number of issued shares and treasury stock

(Thousand shares)
Number of
shares as of
April 1, 2023

Number of
shares

increased

Number of
shares

decreased

Number of
shares as of

March 31, 2024
Note

Issued shares:
Common stock 12,350,038 – – 12,350,038
Preferred stock–first
series of Class 2 100,000 – – 100,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 4 79,700 – – 79,700

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 6 1,000 – – 1,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 7 177,000 – – 177,000

Total 12,707,738 – – 12,707,738
Treasury stock:
Preferred stock–first
series of Class 2 100,000 – – 100,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 4 79,700 – – 79,700

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 6 1,000 – – 1,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 7 177,000 – – 177,000

Total 357,700 – – 357,700

II. Information on share subscription rights and treasury stock acquisition rights

Issuer

Type of
share

subscription
rights

Class of
shares to
be issued

Number of shares
subject to subscription rights

Balance as of
March 31, 2024
(in millions of

yen)
As of

April 1, 2023 Increase Decrease As of
March 31,2024

Consolidated
subsidiaries – – – – – – 0

Total – – – – 0
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III. Information on cash dividends

(1) Cash dividends paid in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

Date of approval Type of stock

Total
Dividends
(in millions
of yen)

Dividend
per share
(in yen)

Dividend
record date Effective date

Meeting of Board of Directors
on May 15, 2023 Common stock 69,654 5.64 March 31,

2023
May 16,
2023

Meeting of Board of Directors
on November 14, 2023 Common stock 111,767 9.05 September 30,

2023
November 15,

2023
Meeting of Board of Directors
on January 30, 2024 Common stock 297,759 24.11 – February 2,

2024

(2) Dividends the record date for which fell within the fiscal year and the effective date of which was after the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2024

Date of approval Type of stock

Total
Dividends
(in millions
of yen)

Source of
dividends

Dividend
per share
(in yen)

Dividend
record date

Effective
date

Meeting of Board of Directors
on May 15, 2024 Common stock 492,025 Retained

earnings 39.84 March 31,
2024

May 16,
2024
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For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

I. Information on the class and number of issued shares and treasury stock

(Thousand shares)
Number of
shares as of
April 1, 2024

Number of
shares

increased

Number of
shares

decreased

Number of
shares as of

March 31, 2025
Note

Issued shares:
Common stock 12,350,038 – – 12,350,038
Preferred stock–first
series of Class 2 100,000 – – 100,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 4 79,700 – – 79,700

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 6 1,000 – – 1,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 7 177,000 – – 177,000

Total 12,707,738 – – 12,707,738
Treasury stock:
Preferred stock–first
series of Class 2 100,000 – – 100,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 4 79,700 – – 79,700

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 6 1,000 – – 1,000

Preferred stock–first
series of Class 7 177,000 – – 177,000

Total 357,700 – – 357,700

II. Information on share subscription rights and treasury stock acquisition rights

Issuer

Type of
share

subscription
rights

Class of
shares to
be issued

Number of shares
subject to subscription rights

Balance as of
March 31, 2025
(in millions of

yen)
As of

April 1, 2024 Increase Decrease As of
March 31,2025

Consolidated
subsidiaries – – – – – – 11

Total – – – – 11
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III. Information on cash dividends

(1) Cash dividends paid in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

Date of approval Type of stock

Total
Dividends
(in millions
of yen)

Dividend
per share
(in yen)

Dividend
record date Effective date

Meeting of Board of Directors
on May 15, 2024 Common stock 492,025 39.84 March 31,

2024
May 16,
2024

Meeting of Board of Directors
on July 30, 2024 Common stock 44,089 3.57 – August 2,

2024
Meeting of Board of Directors
on November 14, 2024 Common stock 197,724 16.01 September 30,

2024
November 15,

2024
Meeting of Board of Directors
on January 31, 2025 Common stock 199,206 16.13 – February 4,

2025

(2) Dividends the record date for which fell within the fiscal year and the effective date of which was after the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2025

Date of approval Type of stock

Total
Dividends
(in millions
of yen)

Source of
dividends

Dividend
per share
(in yen)

Dividend
record date

Effective
date

Meeting of Board of Directors
on May 15, 2025 Common stock 285,656 Retained

earnings 23.13 March 31,
2025

May 16,
2025
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I. “Cash and cash equivalents” compared to items presented on the consolidated balance sheet

The amount of “Cash and cash equivalents” is equal to the amount of “Cash and due from banks” on the consolidated
balance sheet.

II. Major components of assets and liabilities of subsidiaries newly consolidated through share acquisitions

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

Components of the assets and liabilities of each of HC Consumer Finance Philippines, Inc. (“HC Philippines”) and PT Home
Credit Indonesia (“HC Indonesia”) at the time of consolidation as a result of acquisitions of its shares and a reconciliation
between the acquisition cost and the net payment for the acquisition are as follows:

HC Philippines
(in millions of yen)

Assets ¥ 137,576
Liabilities (96,151)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 220
Goodwill 28,195
Acquisition cost 69,841
Cash and cash equivalents of HC Philippines (5,736)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries’equity affecting the scope of consolidation ¥ 64,104

HC Indonesia
(in millions of yen)

Assets ¥ 44,177
Liabilities (30,493)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 93
Goodwill 18,034
Acquisition cost 31,811
Cash and cash equivalents of HC Indonesia (2,894)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries’equity affecting the scope of consolidation ¥ 28,917

Ⅲ. Significant Non-cash Transaction

Pursuant to an absorption-type company split agreement executed on November 14, 2024, the Bank succeeded to shares of au
Kabucom Securities Co., Ltd. (“au Kabucom Securities”), a consolidated subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings
engaged in the financial instruments business, from Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings as of January 24, 2025. As a result, au
Kabucom Securities became a consolidated subsidiary of the Bank.The components of assets and liabilities increased due to the
absorption-type corporate split are disclosed in Note 16 “Business Combinations.”
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Operating leases

(1) Lessee

Future lease payments, including interest expenses, under non-cancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2024 and 2025
were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Due within one year ¥ 25,155 ¥ 26,125
Due after one year 75,181 80,026
Total ¥ 100,336 ¥ 106,152

(Note) The above table does not include lease payments that are booked as "Right-of-use asset" at overseas subsidiaries.

(2) Lessor

Future lease receivables, including interest receivables, under non-cancelable operating leases as of March 31, 2024 and
2025 were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Due within one year ¥ 3,611 ¥ 4,378
Due after one year 41,577 56,224
Total ¥ 45,188 ¥ 60,603
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I. Disclosure on financial instruments

(1) Policy for financial instruments

The Group provides comprehensive financial services such as deposit-taking and lending services, securities investment and other
securities services and foreign exchange services.

In order to prevent these businesses from being negatively affected by fluctuations in interest and foreign exchange rates and other
market conditions, the Bank conducts asset and liability management (“ALM”) by adjusting market exposure and the balance
between short-term and long-term assets and liabilities. To do so, among other things, the Bank raises capital from the market and
hedges risks through derivative transactions.

(2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

The Bank holds various types of financial instruments such as loans, securities, and derivatives and is thus exposed to credit and
market risks.

Credit risk is the risk of loss on receivables such as loans due to nonperformance of contractual obligations caused by factors such
as deterioration in the financial condition of a borrower.

Market risk mainly arises from changes in domestic and overseas interest rates, foreign exchange rates and fluctuations in market
prices of stocks and bonds. For example, an increase in domestic and overseas interest rates would reduce the value of the Bank’s
bond portfolio consisting of government and other bonds, and a rise in Japanese yen would reduce the value of foreign currency
denominated securities and other assets when converted into Japanese yen. The Bank also invests in marketable equity securities,
and a fall in the market price would decrease the fair value of these securities. As part of trading and ALM activities, the Bank
holds derivative products such as interest rate swaps. A significant change in foreign exchange or interest rates may cause a
significant fluctuation in the fair value of these derivative products. In conducting derivative transactions for purposes of hedging
risks, the Bank hedges against interest rate risks associated with instruments including forecasted transactions involving fixed and
variable rate deposits, loans and bonds through designated hedging methods including interest rate swaps. The Bank hedges
against exchange rate fluctuation risks associated with instruments such as foreign currency denominated monetary claims and
liabilities through designated hedging methods including currency swap transactions and forward exchange contracts. In lieu of
effectiveness determination, The Bank designs hedging activities so that the material terms of the designated hedging instruments
are almost identical to those of the hedged items. In limited circumstances, the effectiveness of hedging activities is assessed by the
correlation between factors that cause fluctuations in interest rates.

(3) Risk management relating to financial instruments

(A) Credit risk management

The Bank regularly monitors and assesses the credit portfolios and uses credit rating and asset evaluation and assessment systems
to ensure timely and proper evaluation of credit risk. Based on the credit risk control rules, the Bank has established a credit risk
control system throughout the Bank. In addition, the Bank controls credit risks of the whole Group by providing guidance to the
Group companies on each credit risk control system. In screening individual transactions and managing credit risk, the Bank has
in place a check-and-balance system in which the credit administration section and the business promotion section are kept
separate. The Bank holds regular management committee meetings to ensure full reporting and discussion on important credit risk
management and administration matters. In addition to providing check-and-balance between different functions and conducting
management level deliberations, the audit department also undertakes to validate credit operations to ensure appropriate credit
administration.
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(B) Market risk management

(a) Risk management system

At the Bank, checks and balances are maintained through a system in which the back office(operating and administrative
section) and the middle office (risk control section) operate independently from the front office(market department). As part of
risk control by management, the Executive Committee or another appropriate body establishes the framework for the market
risk management system and defines responsibilities relating to market operations. The Bank allocates economic capital
corresponding to the levels of market risk within the scope of the Bank's capital base, and establishes quantitative limits on
market risk based on the allocated economic capital as well as limits on losses to contain the Bank’s exposure to risks and
losses within a certain range.

(b) Market risk management

The Bank reports daily the status on the exposure to market risk and compliance with quantitative limits on market risk and
losses to its risk management officer and also regularly reports to the ALM Committee and the Corporate Risk Management
Committee, conducting comprehensive analyses on risk profiles including stress testing. The Bank administers risks by hedging
against interest rate and exchange rate fluctuation risks associated with marketable assets and liabilities with various hedging
transactions using securities and derivatives as appropriate. With respect to trading account transactions and their
administration, the Bank documents the process and periodically verifies through internal audits that the valuation methods and
operation of such transactions are appropriate.

(c) Market risk measurement model

Since the daily variation in market risk is significantly greater than that in other types of risks, the Bank measures and manages
market risk primarily using Value at Risk (“VaR”) on a daily basis. Market risk for both trading and banking activities
(excluding strategic equity securities, Krungsri and Bank Danamon) is measured using a uniform market risk measurement
model. The principal method used for the model is the historical simulation method (Trading activities: holding period — 1
business day; confidence interval — 95%; and observation period — 250 business days) (Banking activities:holding period
— 10 business days; confidence interval — 99%; and observation period — 701 business days).

* The historical simulation method calculates VaR amounts by estimating the profit and loss on the current portfolio by
applying actual fluctuations in market rates and prices that occurred over a fixed period in the past. The noted features of the
historical simulation method include the ability to directly reflect the characteristics of the market fluctuations. However, VaR
may not be able to ascertain risks when market volatility reaches abnormal levels because they measure market risks with a
fixed event probability calculated statistically based on past market changes.

* For banking activities of Krungsri and Bank Danamon, the market risk volume is identified using Earnings at Risk
(“EaR”).

* EaR is an index presenting the volatility of net interest income (“NII”) associated with the changes in interest rates and is
presented by the percent change (%) against NII of the standard scenario. In making a trial calculation of EaR, Krungsri sets
two types of scenarios of +100 basis points (+1.00%) and -100 basis points (-1.00%) of interest rate changes and Bank
Danamon sets two types of scenarios of +400 basis points (+4.00%) and -400 basis points (-4.00%).

* NII represents the difference between interest income and interest expenses, which is net income generated from total fund.
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(d) Quantitative information in respect of market risk

(i) Amount of market risk associated with trading activities

The amount of consolidated market risk associated with trading activities across the Group was ¥1,157 million and
¥1,197 million as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

(ii) Amount of market risk associated with banking activities

The amount of consolidated market risk associated with banking activities (excluding strategic equity securities, Krungsri and
Bank Danamon) across the Group was ¥504,572 million and ¥511,777 million as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
As appropriate identification of interest rate risk is vital to banking activities (excluding strategic equity securities, Krungsri
and Bank Danamon), the risk is managed based on the following assumptions for appropriate measurement of core deposit and
prepayment in loans and deposits. For a certain portion of the deposits without contractual maturities (so-called core deposits),
interest rate risk is recognized by allocating maturities of various terms (no longer than 10 years) according to the features of
deposits, taking into account the results of a statistical analysis using data on changes in the balance by product, expected
deposit interest rates and other business judgments. The amount of core deposits and the method of allocating maturities are
reviewed on a regular basis. Meanwhile, the deposits and loans with contractual maturities involve risks associated with
premature repayment or cancellation. These risks are reflected in interest rate risks by estimating the ratio of cancellations
through the statistical analysis based on the factors including interest rate fluctuations and actual repayments and cancellations.
EaR of banking activities of Krungsri as of March 31, 2025 and December 31, 2023 was -0.57% and -0.92%, respectively, at
the time of interest rate changes of +100 basis points (+1.00%) and -6.15% and -4.43%, respectively, at the time interest
changes of -100 basis points (-1.00%).
EaR of banking activities of Bank Danamon as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was -6.24% and -6.93%, respectively, at the
time of interest rate changes of +400 basis points (+4.00%) and -1.57% and -1.81%, respectively, at the time of interest rate
changes of -400 basis points (-4.00%).

(iii) Risk of strategic equity portfolio

The market value of the strategically held stocks (publicly traded) of the Bank as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 was subject to a
variation of approximately ¥1,154 million and ¥1,638 million, respectively, when the TOPIX index moves one point in either
direction.

(e) Limitations of the market risk measurement model and related measures

VaR, which is measured using a market risk measurement model, is calculated using the historical simulation method which
estimates the loss on the current portfolio by applying actual fluctuations in market rates and prices over a fixed period in the
past. Actual losses may exceed VaR in the event, for example, that the market fluctuates to a degree not accounted for in the
observation period, or that the correlations among various risk factors, including interest rates and foreign currency exchange
rates, deviate from those in the past period.
As a means to measure potential losses that the current market risk measurement model is not designed to capture, the Bank
measures potential losses by applying various scenarios, including those that take into account estimates regarding future
market volatility (stress testing) in order to better identify risks.
The Bank also utilizes back-testing to verify the effectiveness of its market risk measurement model in order to better ensure
sufficient accuracy of the model.

(C) Management of liquidity risk associated with funding activities

The Bank strives to secure appropriate liquidity in both yen and foreign currencies by managing the sources of funding and
liquidity gap, liquidity-supplying products such as commitment lines, as well as buffer assets that help maintain liquidity level.

Specifically, the Board of Directors, etc. provide the framework for liquidity risk management, operate businesses at various
stages according to the urgency of funding needs and manage liquidity risk at each such stage. The department responsible for
risk management is designed to perform checking functions independent of other departments. The department reports to the
ALM Committee, the Risk Management Committee and other appropriate bodies on the results of the performance of its
responsibilities such as evaluation of funding urgency and monitoring of compliance with quantitative limits. The department
responsible for funding management performs funding and management activities, and regularly reports the current funding status
and forecast as well as the current liquidity risk status to the department responsible for risk management and other appropriate
bodies such as the ALM Committee.

(4) Supplementary explanation of the fair value of financial instruments

Since certain assumptions are applied in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, such fair value may vary if different
assumptions are used.
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II. Matters concerning fair value of financial instruments and breakdown by input level

The amounts on the consolidated balance sheet, the fair value of financial instruments, the difference between them as well as a
breakdown of financial instruments by input level are as follows.

The following tables do not include investment trusts which are accounted for in accordance with Paragraphs 24-3 and 24-9 of
ASBJ Implementation Guidance No. 31, “Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement”
(ASBJ, July 1, 2024, “Implementation Guidance on Fair Value Measurement”), stocks with no quoted market price, etc. and
investments in partnerships and others which are accounted for in accordance with Paragraph 24-16 of the Implementation
Guidance on Fair Value Measurement. (See Note (*2) to each of the tables in (1), (Note 3) and (Note 4) below.)
The fair values of financial instruments are classified into the following three levels depending on the observability and significance
of the input used in the fair value calculation.

Level 1: Fair value determined based on (unadjusted) quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Fair value determined based on directly or indirectly observable inputs other than the Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Fair value determined based on significant unobservable inputs

Where multiple inputs are used with a significant impact on the fair value calculation, the fair value of a financial instrument is
classified based on the lowest of the priority levels to which any of those inputs belongs.
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(1) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets
As of March 31, 2024

(in millions of yen)

Category

Amount on
consolidated
balance sheet

Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

Monetary claims bought (*1) － 536,565 832,837 1,369,403

Trading assets 476,279 4,374,518 74,058 4,924,856
Money held in trust (Trading purpose /
Other) － 39,021 － 39,021

Securities (Available-for-sale securities) 34,101,686 12,131,698 603,416 46,836,801

Domestic equity securities 4,295,967 22,752 2,694 4,321,414

Government bonds 20,020,320 － － 20,020,320

Municipal bonds － 853,107 － 853,107

Corporate bonds － 2,444,583 － 2,444,583

Foreign equity securities 627,511 44,382 36,460 708,354

Foreign bonds 8,912,739 4,467,751 2,285 13,382,777

Investment trusts (*2) 240,566 4,243,017 2,218 4,485,802

Other securities 4,580 56,104 559,756 620,442

Total assets 34,577,965 17,081,805 1,510,312 53,170,083

Trading liabilities 405,611 101,926 － 507,538

Total liabilities 405,611 101,926 － 507,538

Derivatives (*3) (*4) (*5) 9,788 (557,054) (4,482) (551,748)

Interest rate-related derivatives 135 (579,496) 4,260 (575,100)

Currency-related derivatives 9,518 69,898 2,409 81,826

Equity-related derivatives 31 (27,002) － (26,971)

Bond-related derivatives 102 (13,074) 1,057 (11,914)

Commodity-related derivatives － － － －

Credit-related derivatives － (7,381) (12,118) (19,499)

Other derivatives － 2 (92) (89)
(*1) Monetary claims bought consist of securitized products, etc. of ¥1,369,403 million accounted for in the same manner as

available-for-sale securities.
(*2) The amount of investment trusts which are accounted for in accordance with Paragraphs 24-3 and 24-9 of the Implementation

Guidance on Fair Value Measurement is not included in the table above. The amount of such investment trusts on the
consolidated balance sheets is ¥463,822 million of financial assets

(*3) Derivatives in trading assets and liabilities and in other assets and liabilities are shown together. Assets and liabilities arising
from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Total amounts, which are net liabilities, are presented in parentheses.

(*4) Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting is applied are reported on the consolidated balance sheet at ¥(1,091,435)
million.

(*5) Transactions to which hedge accounting is applied include interest rate swap transactions designated as hedging instruments
for the purpose of fixing cash flows from hedged loans and other assets. Deferred hedge accounting is applied to these
transactions. Of these hedge relationships, all hedge relationships to which "Practical Solution on the Treatment of Hedge
Accounting for Financial Instruments that Reference LIBOR" (ASBJ PITF No.40, March 17, 2022) applies are accounted for
under the standard.
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As of March 31, 2025
(in millions of yen)

Category

Amount on
consolidated
balance sheet

Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

Monetary claims bought (*1) － 492,976 1,068,524 1,561,500

Trading assets 1,177,326 3,788,865 61,796 5,027,988
Money held in trust (Trading purpose /
Other) － 582,161 － 582,161

Securities (Available-for-sale securities) 32,999,734 12,664,502 845,423 46,509,659

Domestic equity securities 3,001,741 18,186 3,264 3,023,191

Government bonds 19,017,678 － － 19,017,678

Municipal bonds － 309,987 － 309,987

Corporate bonds － 1,522,245 1,383 1,523,628

Foreign equity securities 496,204 136,495 28,411 661,111

Foreign bonds 10,278,256 6,835,430 172,869 17,286,556

Investment trusts (*2) 202,249 3,817,391 150 4,019,791

Other securities 3,603 24,764 639,345 667,713

Loans and bills discounted － － 90,936 90,936

Total assets 34,177,060 17,528,505 2,066,680 53,772,246

Trading liabilities 452,040 136,411 － 588,452

Total liabilities 452,040 136,411 － 588,452

Derivatives (*3) (*4) 6,313 (231,232) 119,248 (105,670)

Interest rate-related derivatives 2,994 (498,515) 128,516 (367,005)

Currency-related derivatives (782) 262,562 3,047 264,828

Equity-related derivatives 3,896 17,198 － 21,094

Bond-related derivatives 205 (7,119) 719 (6,194)

Commodity-related derivatives － － － －

Credit-related derivatives － (5,359) (13,361) (18,720)

Other derivatives － 0 326 327
(*1) Monetary claims bought consists of securitized products, etc. of ¥1,561,500 million accounted for in the same manner as

available-for-sale securities.
(*2) The amount of investment trusts which are accounted for in accordance with Paragraphs 24-3 and 24-9 of the Implementation

Guidance on Fair Value Measurement is not included in the table above. The amount of such investment trusts on the
consolidated balance sheet is ¥798,300 million of financial assets.

(*3) Derivatives in trading assets and liabilities and in other assets and liabilities are shown together. Assets and liabilities arising
from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Total amounts, which are net liabilities, are presented in parentheses.

(*4) Derivatives transactions to which hedge accounting is applied are reported on the consolidated balance sheet at ¥(454,458)
million.
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(2) Financial assets and liabilities which are not stated at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet
Cash and due from banks, Call loans and bills bought, Receivables under resale agreements, Receivables under securities
borrowing transactions, Foreign exchanges (assets and liabilities), Call money and bills sold, Payables under repurchase
agreements, Payables under securities lending transactions, Commercial papers, are not included in the following tables since they
are predominantly short-term (within one year), and their fair values approximate their carrying amounts.

As of March 31, 2024
(in millions of yen)

Category
Fair value Amount on

consolidated
balance sheet

Difference
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Monetary claims
bought (*1) － － 3,681,251 3,681,251 3,684,239 (2,988)

Securities (held to
maturity) 14,522,296 7,050,271 － 21,572,567 21,830,556 (257,989)

Government
bonds 14,522,296 30,000 － 14,552,296 14,643,055 (90,759)

Municipal bonds － 1,984,901 － 1,984,901 1,999,181 (14,279)

Corporate bonds － 665,990 － 665,990 668,174 (2,184)

Foreign bonds － 4,369,378 － 4,369,378 4,520,144 (150,765)

Other securities － － － － － －

Loans and bills
discounted (*2) － 42 112,956,122 112,956,165 113,122,503 (166,338)

Total assets 14,522,296 7,050,314 116,637,374 138,209,984 138,637,300 (427,315)

Deposits － 211,302,574 － 211,302,574 211,083,905 218,668
Negotiable certificates
of deposit － 11,253,818 － 11,253,818 11,184,279 69,538

Borrowed money － 35,011,844 － 35,011,844 35,561,966 (550,121)

Bonds payable － 1,869,147 － 1,869,147 1,863,371 5,776

Total liabilities － 259,437,385 － 259,437,385 259,693,523 (256,138)

(*1) Monetary claims bought includes securitized products, etc. of ¥378,580 million accounted for in the same manner as securities
held to maturity.

(*2) General and specific allowances for credit losses of ¥1,188,700 million corresponding to loans are deducted. However, with
respect to items other than loans, the amount stated on the consolidated balance sheet is shown since the amount of allowance
for credit losses corresponding to these items is insignificant.
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As of March 31, 2025
(in millions of yen)

Category
Fair value Amount on

consolidated
balance sheet

Difference
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Monetary claims
bought (*1) － － 3,017,104 3,017,104 3,017,266 (162)

Money held in trust
(held to maturity) － 41,519 － 41,519 42,016 (497)

Securities (held to
maturity) 12,697,695 7,883,999 － 20,581,695 21,189,297 (607,602)

Government
bonds 12,697,695 － － 12,697,695 13,065,413 (367,717)

Municipal bonds － 2,452,486 － 2,452,486 2,545,626 (93,140)

Corporate bonds － 1,238,681 － 1,238,681 1,268,459 (29,777)

Foreign bonds － 4,192,831 － 4,192,831 4,309,798 (116,966)

Other securities － － － － － －

Foreign bonds
(amortized at cost in
accordance with
IFRS9)

－ 148,085 2,239 150,324 147,697 2,626

Loans and bills
discounted (*2) － 301 117,598,103 117,598,404 118,243,276 (644,871)

Total assets 12,697,695 8,073,906 120,617,446 141,389,049 142,639,555 (1,250,506)

Deposits － 214,870,734 － 214,870,734 214,706,827 163,907
Negotiable certificates
of deposit － 11,700,607 － 11,700,607 11,647,851 52,755

Borrowed money － 30,105,829 － 30,105,829 30,505,881 (400,052)

Bonds payable － 1,717,053 － 1,717,053 1,705,304 11,749

Total liabilities － 258,394,224 － 258,394,224 258,565,865 (171,640)

(*1) Monetary claims bought includes securitized products, etc. of ¥106,017 million accounted for in the same manner as securities
held to maturity.

(*2) General and specific allowances for credit losses of ¥886,932 million corresponding to loans are deducted. However, with
respect to items other than loans, the amount stated on the consolidated balance sheet is shown since the amount of allowance
for credit losses corresponding to these items is insignificant.
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(Note 1) Description of the valuation techniques and inputs used to determine fair value

Monetary claims bought
The fair value of monetary claims bought is determined using prices obtained from third-party vendors (broker-dealers, etc.) or
the prices estimated based on internal models.
With respect to some securitized products backed by general corporate loans, the fair value is measured by considering the
estimated fair value amounts determined using projected cash flows through an analysis of the underlying loans, probability of
default, prepayment rates, etc. and discounting the projected cash flows using discount rates reflecting the liquidity premium
based on historical market data and the prices obtained from independent broker-dealers. These products are classified as Level 3.
For other securitized products, the fair value is determined based on the prices obtained from independent third parties after
considering the results of periodic confirmation of the current status of these products, including price comparison with similar
products, time series data comparison of the same product, and analysis of consistency with publicly available market indices.
These products are classified as Level 2 or Level 3 depending on the inputs used for the prices obtained from independent third
parties.
For other monetary claims bought to which these methods do not apply, the carrying amount is presented as the fair value, as they
are mainly short term from their qualitative viewpoint, and therefore, such carrying value approximates the fair value.
Accordingly, they are classified as Level 3.

Trading assets
For securities such as bonds that are held for trading purposes, the fair value is determined based on the market price, the price
quoted by the financial institutions from which these securities were purchased or the present value of the expected future cash
flows discounted at the interest rate, which is the adjusted market rate on the evaluation date and classified principally into Level
2.

Money held in trust
For securities that are part of trust property in an independently managed monetary trust with the primary purpose to manage
securities, the fair value is determined based on the prices quoted by the financial institutions from which these securities are
purchased, and these securities are classified as Level 2 depending on the fair value hierarchy of the component assets.
See “Money Held in Trust” for notes on money held in trust by category based on each purpose of holding the money held in
trust.

Securities
The fair value of equity securities is determined based on the prices quoted by stock exchanges and equity securities are primarily
classified as Level 1 as the quoted prices are available in active markets. The fair value of bonds is determined based on the
market price or the price quoted by the financial institutions from which they are purchased or based on the price reasonably
calculated using internal models. Government bonds are primarily classified as Level 1, other bonds are primarily classified as
Level 2, and foreign equity securities with maturity as well as preferred securities included in Other securities are primarily
classified as Level 3.
For privately placed guaranteed bonds held by the Bank, the fair value is determined based on the present value of expected
future cash flows, which are adjusted to reflect credit risk, the amounts expected to be collected from collateral and guarantees
and guarantee fees, and discounted at an interest rate based on the market interest rates as of the date of evaluation with certain
adjustments. These bonds are classified as Level 2 depending on credit risk, etc.
The fair value of investment trusts is determined based on the closing market price or other publicly available net asset
value.Listed investment trusts and listed real estate investment trusts, which have closing market prices, are primarily classified as
Level 1, and other investment trusts are primarily classified as Level 2. Investment trusts which are accounted for at net asset
value in accordance with Paragraphs 24-3 and 24-9 of the Implementation Guidance on Fair Value Measurement are not
classified as any fair value hierarchy. See “Securities” for notes on securities by category based on each purpose of holding
the securities.

Loans and bills discounted
With respect to loans, for each category of loans based on their types, credit ratings and maturity periods, the fair value is
determined based on the present value of expected future cash flows, which are adjusted to reflect default risk and the amount
expected to be collected from collateral and guarantees and discounted at an interest rate based on the market interest rates as of
the date of evaluation with certain adjustments. These loans are classified as Level 3. For certain loans with floating interest rates,
the carrying amount is presented as the fair value, as the fair value approximates such carrying amount, unless the
creditworthiness of the borrower has changed significantly since the loan origination. These loans are classified as Level 3.
For receivables from bankrupt, virtually bankrupt and likely to become bankrupt borrowers, credit loss is estimated based on
factors such as the present value of expected future cash flows or the amount expected to be collected from collateral and
guarantees. Since the fair value of these items approximates the net amount of receivables after the deduction of allowance for
credit losses on the consolidated balance sheet as of the consolidated balance sheet date, such amount is presented as the fair
value. These receivables are classified as Level 3.
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Deposits and Negotiable certificates of deposit
For demand deposits, the amount payable on demand as of the consolidated balance sheet date (i.e., the carrying amount) is
considered to be the fair value. For floating rate time deposits, the carrying amount is presented as the fair value, as the fair value
approximates such carrying amount because the market interest rates are reflected in such deposits within a short time period. The
fair value of most fixed rate time deposits is the present value of expected future cash flows grouped by certain maturity periods
discounted at the market interest rates. These are classified as Level 2.

Borrowed money
For floating rate borrowings, the carrying amount is presented as the fair value, as the fair value approximates such carrying
amount. This is on the basis that the interest rates on such floating rate borrowings reflect the market interest rates in a short time
period and that there has been no significant change in the creditworthiness of the Bank nor its consolidated subsidiaries after
such borrowings were made. For fixed rate borrowings, the fair value is calculated as the present value of expected future cash
flows from these borrowings grouped by certain maturity periods, which are discounted at the market interest rates reflecting the
premium applicable to the Bank nor its consolidated subsidiaries. These are classified as Level 2.

Bonds payable
The fair value of corporate bonds issued by the Bank nor its consolidated subsidiaries is determined based on their market price.
For certain corporate bonds, the fair value is calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
market interest rates. For floating rate corporate bonds without market prices, the carrying amount of such bonds is presented as
the fair value, as the fair value approximates such carrying amount. This is on the basis that the interest rates on such floating rate
corporate bonds reflect the market interest rates in a short time period and that there has been no significant change in the
creditworthiness of the Bank nor its consolidated subsidiaries after the issuance. For fixed rate corporate bonds without market
prices, the fair value is the present value of expected future cash flows from these borrowings, which are discounted at the market
interest rates reflecting the premium applicable to the Bank nor its consolidated subsidiaries. These are classified as Level 2.

Derivative transactions
Derivative transactions are ones involving interest rates (interest futures, interest options, interest swaps and other transactions),
ones involving foreign currencies (currency futures, currency options, currency swaps and other transactions), and ones involving
bonds (bond futures, bond future options and other transactions). The fair value of exchange-traded derivative transactions is
based on the prices posted by exchanges. The fair value of over-the-counter derivative transactions is based on the discounted
present value or amount calculated under the option-price calculation model.
The key inputs used in the valuation techniques for over-the-counter derivative transactions include interest rate yield curves,
foreign currency exchange rates and volatility. For over-the-counter derivative transactions, adjustments are made for
counterparty credit risk adjustments (credit valuation adjustments (CVA)) and adjustments are also made to reflect the impact of
uncollateralized funding (funding valuation adjustments (FVA)). The calculation of CVA takes into account the probability of a
default event occurring for each counterparty which is primarily derived from an observed or estimated spread on credit default
swaps. In addition, the calculation of CVA takes into account the effect of credit risk mitigation such as pledged collateral and the
legal right of offset with the counterparty. The calculation of FVA takes into account the Bank’s market funding spread reflecting
the credit risk of the Bank and the funding exposure of any uncollateralized component of an over-the-counter derivative
instrument entered into with the counterparty.
Exchange-traded derivative transactions valued using quoted prices are classified as Level 1. Over-the-counter derivative
transactions are classified as Level 2 if their fair value is not measured based on significant unobservable inputs. Over-the-counter
derivative transactions whose fair value is measured based on significant unobservable inputs are classified as Level 3.
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(Note 2) Quantitative information about financial assets and liabilities measured and presented on the consolidated balance sheet
at fair value and classified in Level 3

(1) Quantitative information on significant unobservable inputs

As of March 31, 2024

Category Valuation technique Signification unobservable inputs Range Weighted
average (*1)

Monetary claims bought

Securitized products Internal model (*2)

Correlation between underlying assets 3.0% 3.0%

Liquidity premium 1.4% 1.4%

Prepayment rate 17.6% 17.6%

Probability of default 0.0%~93.0% ―

Recovery rate 55.0% 55.0%

Securities
Foreign equity
securities Discounted cash flow Liquidity premium 0.8%~1.7% 1.4%

Other Discounted cash flow Liquidity premium 1.1%~3.2% 2.9%

Derivatives

Interest rate-related
derivatives Option model

Correlation between interest rates 36.9%~50.0% ―

Correlation between interest rate and
foreign exchange rate (1.9)%~49.6% ―

Volatility 62.8%~97.4% ―

(*1) The weighted average is calculated by weighing each input by the relative fair value of the respective financial assets.
(*2) For further details of Internal model, refer to “Monetary claims bought” in “(Note 1) Description of the valuation

techniques and inputs used to measure fair value” under “Ⅱ. Matters concerning fair value of financial instruments and
breakdown by input level” above.

As of March 31, 2025

Category Valuation technique Signification unobservable inputs Range
Weighted

average (*1)

Monetary claims bought

Securitized products Internal model (*2)

Correlation between underlying assets 2.0% 2.0%

Liquidity premium 1.2% 1.2%

Prepayment rate 28.0% 28.0%

Probability of default 0.0%~99.0% ―

Recovery rate 60.4% 60.4%

Securities

Foreign equity
securities

Discounted cash flow Liquidity premium 1.5%~1.7% 1.6%

Foreign bonds Discounted cash flow Liquidity premium 0.0%~0.1% 0.0%

Other Discounted cash flow Liquidity premium 1.7%~3.2% 2.4%

Derivatives

Interest rate-related
derivatives

Option model

Correlation between interest rates 34.8%~49.1% ―

Correlation between interest rate and
foreign exchange rate

5.6%~48.4% ―

Volatility 59.4%~91.9% ―

(*1) The weighted average is calculated by weighing each input by the relative fair value of the respective financial assets.
(*2) For further details of Internal model, refer to “Monetary claims bought” in “(Note 1) Description of the valuation

techniques and inputs used to measure fair value” under “Ⅱ. Matters concerning fair value of financial instruments and
breakdown by input level” above.



50

(2) Table showing reconciliation between the opening balance and the closing balance during the reporting period, and unrealized
gains (losses) recognized in net income (loss)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
(in millions of yen)

Category March 31,
2023

Included
in

net income
(loss)
(*1)

Included
in other

comprehensive
income
(*2)

Purchases,
Issues,
Sales,

Settlements
and others

Transfers
into

Level 3
(*3)

Transfers
out of
Level 3
(*4)

March 31,
2024

Change in
unrealized

gains (losses)
included in
net income
(loss) on
assets and
liabilities
still held at
March 31,
2024 (*1)

Monetary
claims bought 287,429 65,469 13,288 466,649 － － 832,837 65,469

Trading assets 50,572 7,162 － 16,324 － － 74,058 7,162

Securities 400,023 51,115 8,343 143,928 25 (19) 603,416 50,221
Domestic equity
securities 2,389 167 124 12 － － 2,694 167

Corporate bonds － (2) 0 (3) 25 (19) － －

Foreign equity
securities 39,065 3,768 1,153 (7,527) － － 36,460 2,872

Foreign bonds 2,165 (83) 167 36 － － 2,285 (83)

Investment trusts 2,189 (160) 190 － － － 2,218 (160)

Other securities 354,213 47,426 6,706 151,410 － － 559,756 47,426

Total assets 738,025 123,747 21,631 626,901 25 (19) 1,510,312 122,853

Derivatives (*5) 145,142 (76,558) － 95,288 (7,986) (160,369) (4,482) (69,227)
Interest
rate-related
derivatives

137,885 (82,937) － 95,645 8,041 (154,374) 4,260 (72,771)

Currency-related
derivatives 3,714 2,840 － － 68 (4,213) 2,409 (0)
Equity-related
derivatives － － － － － － － －

Bond-related
derivatives 3,178 81 － (420) － (1,781) 1,057 81
Commodity-
related derivatives － － － － － － － －

Credit-related
derivatives － 3,978 － － (16,096) － (12,118) 3,978

Other derivatives 364 (520) － 64 － － (92) (515)

(*1) Mainly included in Trading income and Other operating income in the consolidated statements of income.
(*2) Mainly included in Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities in Other comprehensive income in the

consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
(*3) Transfers into Level 3 from Level 2 were made primarily based on the significance of unobservable inputs considering CVA

on the counterparty’s credit risk and FVA on unsecured funding principally in interest rate related transactions and Credit
related derivative transactions. This transfer was implemented at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024.

(*4) Transfers into Level 2 from Level 3 were made primarily based on the significance of unobservable inputs considering CVA
on the counterparty’s credit risk and FVA on unsecured funding principally in interest rate related transactions. This transfer
was implemented at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024.

(*5) Derivatives in trading assets and liabilities and in other assets and liabilities are shown together. Assets and liabilities arising
from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Total amounts, which are net liabilities, are presented in
parentheses.



51

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
(in millions of yen)

Category March 31,
2024

Included
in

net income
(loss)
(*1)

Included
in other

comprehensive
income
(*2)

Purchases,
Issues,
Sales,

Settlements

Transfers
into

Level 3
(*3)

Transfers
out of
Level 3
(*4)

March 31,
2025

Change in
unrealized

gains (losses)
included in
net income
(loss) on
assets and
liabilities
still held at
March 31,
2025 (*1)

Monetary
claims bought 832,837 (14,890) 244 250,333 － － 1,068,524 (14,870)

Trading assets 74,058 (1,557) － (10,704) － － 61,796 (1,557)

Securities 603,416 (12,220) 15,550 162,781 80,234 (4,339) 845,423 (11,861)
Domestic equity
securities 2,694 － 569 － － － 3,264 －

Corporate bonds － (20) (177) (50) 1,631 － 1,383 (20)
Foreign equity
securities 36,460 (4,134) 3,380 (7,811) 515 － 28,411 (3,879)

Foreign bonds 2,285 (1,079) (46) 95,882 77,946 (2,120) 172,869 (975)

Investment trusts 2,218 － 9 － 141 (2,218) 150 －

Other securities 559,756 (6,985) 11,814 74,760 － － 639,345 (6,985)
Loans and bills
discounted － (15,193) 5,561 100,568 － － 90,936 (3,455)

Total assets 1,510,312 (43,861) 21,355 502,978 80,234 (4,339) 2,066,680 (31,745)

Derivatives (*5) (4,482) (41,202) － 54,866 245,874 (135,806) 119,248 (26,310)
Interest
rate-related
derivatives

4,260 (40,060) － 54,824 245,396 (135,904) 128,516 (24,436)

Currency-related
derivatives 2,409 (48) － 111 477 97 3,047 (768)
Equity-related
derivatives － － － － － － － －

Bond-related
derivatives 1,057 87 － (426) － － 719 87
Commodity-
related derivatives － － － － － － － －

Credit-related
derivatives (12,118) (1,243) － － － － (13,361) (1,253)

Other derivatives (92) 61 － 357 － － 326 59

(*1) Mainly included in Trading income and Other operating income in the consolidated statements of income.
(*2) Mainly included in Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, Net unrealized gains (losses) on loans of

foreign subsidiaries in Other comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
(*3) Transfers into Level 3 from Level 2 were made primarily based on the significance of unobservable inputs considering CVA

on the counterparty’s credit risk and FVA on unsecured funding principally in interest rate related transactions. This transfer
was implemented at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025.

(*4) Transfers into Level 2 from Level 3 were made primarily based on the significance of unobservable inputs considering CVA
on the counterparty’s credit risk and FVA on unsecured funding principally in interest rate related transactions. This transfer
was implemented at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025.

(*5) Derivatives in trading assets and liabilities and in other assets and liabilities are shown together. Assets and liabilities arising
from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Total amounts, which are net liabilities, are presented in
parentheses.
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(3) Description of the fair value valuation process

The Financial Planning Division has established the Group policy and procedures regarding fair value measurement, the
Corporate Risk Management Division has implemented procedures regarding the use of the fair value valuation model, and the
division in charge of the product develops the fair value valuation models in line with the policy and procedures. The models are
confirmed by the Corporate Risk Management Division for validity and by the Financial Planning Division for whether the inputs
used and the fair value calculated complies with the policy and procedures. The Financial Planning Division also determines the
classification of fair value levels based on the outcome of the said confirmation. When quoted prices obtained from third parties
are used as fair value, their validity is verified taking appropriate methods such as confirming the valuation techniques and inputs
used and comparing with the fair value of similar financial instruments.

(4) Description of the sensitivity of the fair value to changes in significant unobservable inputs

Probability of default
Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood that the default event will occur and the Bank will be unable to collect the
contractual amounts. A significant increase (decrease) in the default rate would result in a significant decrease (increase) in a fair
value.

Recovery rate and Prepayment rate
Recovery rate is the proportion of the total outstanding balance of a bond or loan that is expected to be collected in a liquidation
scenario. Prepayment rate represents the proportion of principal that is expected to be paid prematurely in each period on a
security or pool of securities. Recovery rate and prepayment rate would affect estimation of future cash flows to a certain extent
and changes in these inputs could result in a significant increase or decrease in fair value.

Liquidity premium
Liquidity premium is an adjustment to discount rates to reflect uncertainty of cash flows and liquidity of the financial instruments.
When recent prices of similar instruments are unobservable in inactive or less active markets, discount rates are adjusted based on
the facts and circumstances of the markets including the availability of quotes and the time since the latest available quotes. A
significant increase (decrease) in discount rate would result in a significant decrease (increase) in a fair value.

Volatility
Volatility is a measure of the speed and severity of market price changes and is a key factor in pricing. A significant increase
(decrease) in volatility would cause a significant increase (decrease) in the value of an option resulting in the significant increase
(decrease) in fair value. The level of volatility generally depends on the tenor of the underlying assets and the strike price or level
defined in the contract. Volatilities for certain combinations of tenor and strike price are not observable.

Correlation
Correlation is a measure of the relationship between the movements of two variables. A variety of correlation-related
assumptions are required for a wide range of instruments including derivative transactions. In most cases, correlations used are
not observable in the market and must be estimated using historical information. Changes in correlation inputs can have a major
impact, favorable or unfavorable, on the value of an instrument, depending on its nature. In addition, the wide range of
correlation inputs are primarily due to the complex and unique nature of these instruments. There are many different types of
correlation inputs, including cross-asset correlation (such as correlation between interest rate), and same-asset correlation (such as
correlation between interest rates). Correlation levels are highly dependent on market conditions and could have a relatively wide
range of levels within different currencies financial instruments or across different types of financial instruments.
For interest rate-related derivatives, the diversity in the portfolio held by the Bank is reflected in wide ranges of correlation, as
the fair values of transactions with a variety of currencies and tenors are determined using several foreign exchange and interest
rate curves.
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(Note 3) Quantitative information about investment trusts which are accounted for in accordance with Paragraphs 24-3 and 24-9 of the
Implementation Guidance on Fair Value Measurement
Table showing reconciliation between the opening balance and the closing balance during the reporting period, and unrealized
gains (losses) recognized in net income (loss)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
(in millions of yen)

Category
March 31,
2023

Included
in

net income
(loss)
(*1)

Included
in other

comprehensive
income
(*2)

Purchases,
Sales,

Redemptions

Transfers
into

Paragraphs
24-3 and
24-9

Transfers
out of

Paragraphs
24-3 and
24-9

March 31,
2024

Change in
unrealized

gains (losses)
included in
net income
(loss) on
Investment

trusts
still held at
March 31,
2024 (*1)

Investment trusts
(Available-for-sale
securities)

238,967 37,304 3,740 185,873 － (2,063) 463,822 37,304

Paragraph 24-3
(*3) 236,904 37,304 3,740 182,570 － － 460,519 37,304

Paragraph 24-9 2,063 － － 3,303 － (2,063) 3,303 －

(*1) Mainly included in Other operating income in the consolidated statements of income.
(*2) Included in Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities in Other comprehensive income in the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income.
(*3) Major components of restrictions on cancellation or buy-back requests as of the fiscal closing date are non-cancellable of

¥25,578 million, restricted period of cancellation of ¥7,267 million and maximum limits on redemption of ¥427,672 million.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
(in millions of yen)

Category
March 31,
2024

Included
in

net income
(loss)
(*1)

Included
in other

comprehensive
income
(*2)

Purchases,
Sales,

Redemptions

Transfers
into

Paragraphs
24-3 and
24-9

Transfers
out of

Paragraphs
24-3 and
24-9

March 31,
2025

Change in
unrealized

gains (losses)
included in
net income
(loss) on
Investment

trusts
still held at
March 31,
2025 (*1)

Investment trusts
(Available-for-sale
securities)

463,822 (11,339) 5,224 337,395 3,197 － 798,300 (11,339)

Paragraph 24-3
(*3) 460,519 (10,996) 5,555 326,584 － － 781,663 (10,996)

Paragraph 24-9 3,303 (343) (330) 10,810 3,197 － 16,636 (343)

(*1) Mainly included in Other operating income in the consolidated statements of income.
(*2) Included in Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities in Other comprehensive income in the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income.
(*3) Major components of restrictions on cancellation or buy-back requests as of the fiscal closing date are non-cancellable of

¥68,249 million, restricted period of cancellation of ¥6,604 million and ¥706,809 million of those which required advance
notice or had a specified redemption date.
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(Note 4) The following table sets forth the amounts of equity securities with no quoted market price available and investments in
partnerships and others on the consolidated balance sheet. These securities and investments are not included in “Trading
assets” or “Securities” in the tables presented under the section captioned “Matters concerning fair value of financial
instruments and breakdown by input level”.

(in millions of yen)
Amount on consolidated balance sheet

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
Equity securities with no quoted market price available (*1) (*3) ¥ 221,292 ¥ 191,643
Investments in partnerships and others (*2) (*3) 311,673 345,904

(*1) Equity securities with no quoted market price available include unlisted equity securities, etc. and are not subject to fair value
disclosure in accordance with Paragraph 5 of ASBJ Implementation Guidance No. 19 “Implementation Guidance on
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (ASBJ, September 13, 2024.)

(*2) Investments in partnerships and others mainly include silent partnerships and investment partnerships and other partnerships.
Their fair values are not subject to fair value disclose in accordance with Paragraph 24-16 of Guidance for Application of Fair
Value Measurement.

(*3) An impairment loss of ¥5,058 million and ¥43,148 million was recorded on unlisted equity securities and other investments for
the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 and 2025, respectively.
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(Note 5) Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024

Due in one
year or less

Due after one
year through
three years

Due after
three years
through five

years

Due after
five years

through seven
years

Due after
seven years
through ten

years

Due after ten
years

Securities (*1) (*2): ¥ 27,445,378 ¥ 8,616,998 ¥ 9,815,871 ¥ 3,965,930 ¥ 4,672,069 ¥ 9,388,722
Held-to-maturity securities: 3,540,172 4,792,008 3,701,580 1,938,091 3,660,473 4,576,810
Japanese government
bonds 3,409,951 4,272,975 2,919,580 1,404,893 2,635,655 －

Municipal bonds 35,140 314,750 514,533 354,351 780,406 －

Corporate bonds 95,081 204,282 267,467 16,647 28,030 56,665
Foreign bonds － － － － － 4,520,144
Other － － － 162,199 216,381 －

Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities: 23,905,205 3,824,989 6,114,290 2,027,839 1,011,595 4,811,911

Japanese government bonds 18,978,887 765,748 63,610 － 4,992 207,081
Municipal bonds 307,165 334,377 55,116 133,992 22,455 －

Corporate bonds 374,597 471,144 270,818 188,648 119,426 1,019,948
Foreign equity securities 12,113 11,203 8,875 － － －

Foreign bonds 3,476,534 2,022,107 3,039,957 1,686,787 829,014 2,328,278
Other 755,906 220,408 2,675,912 18,411 35,706 1,256,602

Loans (*1) (*3) 46,549,487 24,562,418 17,403,803 7,715,806 6,042,317 10,817,159
Total ¥ 73,994,865 ¥ 33,179,416 ¥ 27,219,674 ¥ 11,681,737 ¥ 10,714,386 ¥ 20,205,881
(*1) The amounts above are stated using the carrying amount.
(*2) Securities include securitized products included in “Monetary claims bought.”
(*3) Loans do not include those amounts whose repayment schedules cannot be determined including those due from “bankrupt”

borrowers, “virtually bankrupt” borrowers and “likely to become bankrupt” borrowers amounting to ¥1,220,212 million.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Due in one
year or less

Due after one
year through
three years

Due after
three years
through five

years

Due after
five years

through seven
years

Due after
seven years
through ten

years

Due after ten
years

Securities (*1) (*2): ¥ 22,964,791 ¥ 12,060,048 ¥ 5,812,052 ¥ 5,532,992 ¥ 5,009,470 ¥ 12,951,977
Held-to-maturity securities: 1,854,284 6,017,977 1,708,372 2,693,585 4,224,757 4,796,338
Japanese government bonds 1,654,975 5,246,390 890,989 2,001,806 3,271,250 －

Municipal bonds 95,514 476,486 576,191 525,792 871,641 －

Corporate bonds 103,794 295,099 241,191 59,967 81,865 486,539
Foreign bonds － － － － － 4,309,798
Other － － － 106,017 － －

Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities: 21,110,506 6,042,070 4,103,680 2,839,407 784,712 8,155,639

Japanese government bonds 16,262,218 841,400 81,571 － 117,153 1,715,335
Municipal bonds 119,745 14,550 98,099 76,501 1,089 －

Corporate bonds 172,986 338,270 274,940 98,992 98,457 539,981
Foreign equity securities 1,366 20,285 － － － －

Foreign bonds 4,099,593 3,627,738 2,071,117 2,620,895 496,570 4,518,339
Other 454,595 1,199,825 1,577,952 43,018 71,441 1,381,983

Loans (*1) (*3) 52,036,555 24,917,908 17,606,478 7,149,734 6,015,138 10,678,230
Total ¥ 75,001,346 ¥ 36,977,956 ¥ 23,418,530 ¥ 12,682,727 ¥ 11,024,609 ¥ 23,630,207
(*1) The amounts above are stated using the carrying amount.
(*2) Securities include securitized products included in “Monetary claims bought.”
(*3) Loans do not include those amounts whose repayment schedules cannot be determined including those due from “bankrupt”

borrowers, “virtually bankrupt” borrowers and “likely to become bankrupt” borrowers amounting to ¥817,099 million.
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(Note 6) Maturity analysis for “Time deposits,” “Negotiable certificates of deposit” and other interest-bearing liabilities
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024

Due in one
year or less

Due after one
year through
three years

Due after
three years
through five

years

Due after
five years

through seven
years

Due after
seven years
through ten

years

Due after ten
years

Time deposits and negotiable
certificates of deposit (*1) ¥ 53,683,441 ¥ 4,594,922 ¥ 575,467 ¥ 59,197 ¥ 209,079 ¥ 2,394

Borrowed money (*1) (*2) (*3) 20,823,820 4,668,393 4,022,495 1,347,166 2,027,459 2,672,630
Bonds (*1) (*2) 277,780 212,442 44,489 229,276 180,805 918,576
Total ¥ 74,785,042 ¥ 9,475,758 ¥ 4,642,452 ¥ 1,635,640 ¥ 2,417,343 ¥ 3,593,601
(*1) The amounts above are stated using the carrying amounts.
(*2) “Borrowed money” and “Bonds” whose maturities are not defined are recorded under “Due after ten years.”
(*3) There was no outstanding balance of rediscounted bills as of March 31, 2024.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Due in one
year or less

Due after one
year through
three years

Due after
three years
through five

years

Due after
five years

through seven
years

Due after
seven years
through ten

years

Due after ten
years

Time deposits and negotiable
certificates of deposit (*1) ¥ 56,979,481 ¥ 4,834,996 ¥ 747,493 ¥ 73,432 ¥ 274,242 ¥ 2,364

Borrowed money (*1) (*2) (*3) 18,818,333 3,070,038 2,203,829 1,016,776 2,198,387 3,198,515
Bonds (*1) (*2) 187,866 182,741 56,310 168,755 192,093 917,537
Total ¥ 75,985,681 ¥ 8,087,775 ¥ 3,007,632 ¥ 1,258,964 ¥ 2,664,723 ¥ 4,118,417
(*1) The amounts above are stated using the carrying amounts.
(*2) “Borrowed money” and “Bonds” whose maturities are not defined are recorded under “Due after ten years.”
(*3) There was no outstanding balance of rediscounted bills as of March 31, 2025.
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99999..... SSSSSeeeeecccccuuuuurrrrriiiiitttttiiiiieeeeesssss

In addition to “Securities” on the consolidated balance sheet, the figures in the following tables include trading account
securities, securities related to trading transactions and short-term corporate bonds classified as “Trading assets,” negotiable
certificates of deposit in “Cash and due from banks,” securitized products in “Monetary claims bought” and others.

I. Trading securities
(in millions of yen)

For the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024 2025

Net unrealized gains (losses) recorded
on the consolidated statement of income ¥ (3,670) ¥ (2,570)

II. Debt securities being held to maturity
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Amount on
consolidated
balance sheet Fair value Difference

Securities whose fair value
exceeds amount on
consolidated balance sheet:

Domestic bonds ¥ 2,881,098 ¥ 2,887,984 ¥ 6,886
Government bonds 2,361,247 2,365,840 4,592
Municipal bonds 402,639 404,686 2,047
Corporate bonds 117,211 117,457 245

Other securities 585,636 588,788 3,151
Foreign bonds 585,636 588,788 3,151
Other － － －

Subtotal ¥ 3,466,735 ¥ 3,476,773 ¥ 10,038

Securities whose fair value
does not exceed amount on
consolidated balance sheet:

Domestic bonds ¥ 14,429,313 ¥ 14,315,203 ¥ (114,109)
Government bonds 12,281,807 12,186,455 (95,351)
Municipal bonds 1,596,542 1,580,214 (16,327)
Corporate bonds 550,963 548,533 (2,430)

Other securities 4,313,088 4,156,182 (156,906)
Foreign bonds 3,934,508 3,780,590 (153,917)
Other 378,580 375,592 (2,988)
Subtotal ¥ 18,742,402 ¥ 18,471,386 ¥ (271,015)
Total ¥ 22,209,137 ¥ 21,948,160 ¥ (260,977)
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(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Amount on
consolidated
balance sheet Fair value Difference

Securities whose fair value
exceeds amount on
consolidated balance sheet:

Domestic bonds ¥ 2,700 ¥ 2,703 ¥ 3
Government bonds － － －

Municipal bonds － － －

Corporate bonds 2,700 2,703 3
Other securities 1,710,758 1,721,531 10,773

Foreign bonds 1,656,549 1,667,287 10,738
Other 54,208 54,243 35
Subtotal ¥ 1,713,458 ¥ 1,724,235 ¥ 10,777

Securities whose fair value
does not exceed amount on
consolidated balance sheet:

Domestic bonds ¥ 16,876,799 ¥ 16,386,160 ¥ (490,639)
Government bonds 13,065,413 12,697,695 (367,717)
Municipal bonds 2,545,626 2,452,486 (93,140)
Corporate bonds 1,265,759 1,235,978 (29,781)

Other securities 2,705,057 2,577,155 (127,902)
Foreign bonds 2,653,248 2,525,543 (127,705)
Other 51,808 51,611 (197)
Subtotal ¥ 19,581,856 ¥ 18,963,315 ¥ (618,541)
Total ¥ 21,295,315 ¥ 20,687,550 ¥ (607,764)
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III. Available-for-sale securities

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024

Amount on
consolidated
balance sheet Acquisition cost Difference

Securities whose fair value exceeds
the acquisition cost:

Domestic equity securities ¥ 4,292,108 ¥ 1,147,134 ¥ 3,144,973
Domestic bonds 2,999,738 2,991,743 7,994

Government bonds 2,332,505 2,330,347 2,157
Municipal bonds 109,798 109,572 225
Corporate bonds 557,434 551,823 5,611

Other securities 9,037,619 8,827,903 209,715
Foreign equity securities 584,501 537,180 47,321
Foreign bonds 5,068,740 5,020,944 47,796
Other 3,384,376 3,269,778 114,597
Subtotal ¥ 16,329,465 ¥ 12,966,781 ¥ 3,362,684

Securities whose fair value does not
exceed the acquisition cost:

Domestic equity securities ¥ 29,305 ¥ 34,000 ¥ (4,694)
Domestic bonds 20,318,272 20,397,757 (79,484)

Government bonds 17,687,815 17,714,894 (27,078)
Municipal bonds 743,309 748,938 (5,628)
Corporate bonds 1,887,148 1,933,925 (46,777)

Other securities 12,451,010 13,348,761 (897,750)
Foreign equity securities 123,852 158,928 (35,076)
Foreign bonds 8,314,036 9,044,399 (730,362)
Other 4,013,122 4,145,433 (132,311)
Subtotal ¥ 32,798,589 ¥ 33,780,519 ¥ (981,929)
Total ¥ 49,128,055 ¥ 46,747,301 ¥ 2,380,754

(Note) The total difference amount shown in the table above includes ¥409,113 million revaluation gains on securities by
application of the fair value hedge accounting method.
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(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Amount on
consolidated
balance sheet Acquisition cost Difference

Securities whose fair value exceeds
the acquisition cost:

Domestic equity securities ¥ 2,979,739 ¥ 919,852 ¥ 2,059,886
Domestic bonds 928,498 924,571 3,926

Government bonds 786,411 784,528 1,882
Municipal bonds 90 87 2
Corporate bonds 141,997 139,955 2,041

Other securities 15,270,419 14,990,144 280,275
Foreign equity securities 217,289 164,048 53,241
Foreign bonds 10,177,885 10,054,000 123,884
Other 4,875,243 4,772,094 103,149
Subtotal ¥ 19,178,656 ¥ 16,834,568 ¥ 2,344,088

Securities whose fair value does not
exceed the acquisition cost:

Domestic equity securities ¥ 43,452 ¥ 51,601 ¥ (8,148)
Domestic bonds 19,922,795 20,065,031 (142,235)

Government bonds 18,231,267 18,291,629 (60,362)
Municipal bonds 309,897 319,676 (9,779)
Corporate bonds 1,381,631 1,453,725 (72,093)

Other securities 10,247,723 10,479,865 (232,142)
Foreign equity securities 443,821 461,844 (18,022)
Foreign bonds 7,108,671 7,212,952 (104,281)
Other 2,695,230 2,805,069 (109,839)
Subtotal ¥ 30,213,971 ¥ 30,596,498 ¥ (382,527)
Total ¥ 49,392,628 ¥ 47,431,067 ¥ 1,961,561

(Note)
1. Foreign bonds of ¥147,697 million (¥150,324 million at fair value) that are amortized at cost in accordance with IFRS 9 at

certain overseas subsidiaries are not included in the table as of March 31, 2025.
2.The total difference amount shown in the table above includes ¥192,118 million revaluation gains on securities by application of

the fair value hedge accounting method.



61

IV. Available-for-sale securities sold

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

Amount sold Gains on sales Losses on sales
Domestic equity securities ¥ 555,903 ¥ 338,935 ¥ 2,366
Domestic bonds 38,212,018 15,229 109,670

Government bonds 36,422,819 14,001 97,772
Municipal bonds 1,403,104 740 10,514
Corporate bonds 386,095 487 1,383

Other securities 15,455,364 93,539 403,932
Foreign equity securities 12,909 8,191 742
Foreign bonds 14,767,937 69,466 351,219
Other 674,518 15,881 51,971
Total ¥ 54,223,287 ¥ 447,704 ¥ 515,969

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

Amount sold Gains on sales Losses on sales
Domestic equity securities ¥ 749,788 ¥ 474,676 ¥ 1,676
Domestic bonds 20,303,077 21,238 150,286

Government bonds 19,515,498 19,781 124,177
Municipal bonds 236,337 102 1,967
Corporate bonds 551,241 1,354 24,141

Other securities 22,274,992 85,689 772,276
Foreign equity securities 175,849 11,443 1,845
Foreign bonds 20,598,030 38,487 753,282
Other 1,501,112 35,758 17,148
Total ¥ 43,327,858 ¥ 581,604 ¥ 924,240
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V. Securities reclassified due to change of purpose in holding such securities
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
None.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
None.

VI. Securities with impairment losses
Securities other than trading securities and investments in affiliates (excluding non-marketable equity securities or investment in
partnerships and others), whose fair value significantly declined compared with the acquisition cost, and is considered to be other
than recoverable decline, were written down to the respective fair value, which is recorded as the carrying amount on the
consolidated balance sheets.

Impairment losses on such securities for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 were ¥1,761 million consisting of ¥853 million on
equity securities and ¥907 million on bonds and other securities.

Impairment losses on such securities for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025 were ¥5,408 million consisting of ¥1,478 million
on equity securities and ¥3,930 million on bonds and other securities.

Whether there is any “significant decline in the fair value” is determined for each category of issuers in accordance with the
internal standards for self-assessment of asset quality as provided below:

Bankrupt issuers, virtually bankrupt issuers and likely to become bankrupt issuers:
The fair value is lower than acquisition cost.

Issuers requiring close watch:
The fair value has declined 30% or more from acquisition cost.

Normal issuers:
The fair value has declined 50% or more from acquisition cost.

“Bankrupt issuers” means issuers who have entered into bankruptcy, special liquidation proceedings or similar legal
proceedings or whose notes have been dishonored and suspended from processing through clearing houses. “Virtually bankrupt
issuers” means issuers who are not legally or formally bankrupt but are regarded as substantially in similar condition. “Likely
to become bankrupt issuers” means issuers who are not yet legally or formally bankrupt but deemed to have a high possibility of
becoming bankrupt. “Issuers requiring close watch” means issuers who are financially weak and are under close monitoring by
our subsidiaries.
“Normal issuers” means issuers other than those who are categorized in the four categories mentioned above.
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1111100000..... MMMMMooooonnnnneeeeeyyyyy HHHHHeeeeelllllddddd iiiiinnnnn TTTTTrrrrruuuuusssssttttt

I. Money held in trust for trading purposes

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024

Amount on the
consolidated
balance sheet

Net unrealized gains (losses) recorded on the consolidated
statement of income

Money held in trust for trading purposes ¥ 36,110 ¥ 63

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Amount on the
consolidated
balance sheet

Net unrealized gains (losses) recorded on the consolidated
statement of income

Money held in trust for trading purposes ¥ 31,743 ¥ 65

II. Money held in trust being held to maturity

As of March 31, 2024
None.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

(a)
Amount on the
consolidated
balance sheet

(b)
Fair value Difference

(b) - (a)

Money held in
trust with
respect to
which (b)
exceeds (a)

Money held
in trust with
respect to
which (b)
does not
exceed (a)

Money held in trust being held to maturity ¥ 42,016 ¥ 41,519 ¥ (497) ¥ － ¥ 497

(Note) “Money held in trust with respect to which (b) exceeds (a)” and “Money held in trust with respect to which (b) does
not exceed (a)” show the breakdown of “Difference (b) - (a)”.

III. Money held in trust not for trading purposes or being held to maturity

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024

(a)
Amount on the
consolidated
balance sheet

(b)
Acquisition

cost
Difference
(a) - (b)

Money held in
trust with
respect to
which (a)
exceeds (b)

Money held
in trust with
respect to
which (a)
does not
exceed (b)

Money held in trust not for trading purposes or
being held to maturity ¥ 2,911 ¥ 2,911 ¥ － ¥ － ¥ －

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

(a)
Amount on the
consolidated
balance sheet

(b)
Acquisition

cost
Difference
(a) - (b)

Money held in
trust with
respect to
which (a)
exceeds (b)

Money held
in trust with
respect to
which (a)
does not
exceed (b)

Money held in trust not for trading purposes or
being held to maturity ¥ 550,417 ¥ 550,417 ¥ － ¥ － ¥ －

(Note) “Money held in trust with respect to which (a) exceeds (b)” and “Money held in trust with respect to which (a) does not
exceed (b)” show the breakdown of “Difference (a) - (b)”.
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1111111111..... NNNNNeeeeettttt UUUUUnnnnnrrrrreeeeeaaaaallllliiiiizzzzzeeeeeddddd GGGGGaaaaaiiiiinnnnnsssss (((((LLLLLooooosssssssssseeeeesssss))))) ooooonnnnn AAAAAvvvvvaaaaaiiiiilllllaaaaabbbbbllllleeeee-----fffffooooorrrrr-----SSSSSaaaaallllleeeee SSSSSeeeeecccccuuuuurrrrriiiiitttttiiiiieeeeesssss

Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities recorded on the consolidated balance sheet as of the dates indicated
consisted of the following:

As of March 31, 2024

(in millions of yen)
Net unrealized gains (losses) ¥ 2,009,874

Available-for-sale securities 2,009,874
Money held in trust not for trading purpose or being held to maturity －

Deferred tax liabilities (628,035)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of deferred tax liabilities
(before adjustments by ownership share) 1,381,838
Non-controlling interests (5,086)
The Bank’s ownership share in equity method investees’unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities (5,919)
Total ¥ 1,370,832
(Notes)
1. “Net unrealized gains (losses)” shown in the above table excludes ¥409,113 million of revaluation gains on securities as a

result of application of the fair value hedge accounting method, which are recorded in current earnings.
2. Unrealized gain in the table above includes ¥38,233 million of net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities invested in

limited partnerships.

As of March 31, 2025

(in millions of yen)
Net unrealized gains (losses) ¥ 1,785,623

Available-for-sale securities 1,785,623
Money held in trust not for trading purpose or being held to maturity －

Loss allowance for debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in accordance with IFRS 9 62

Deferred tax liabilities (559,783)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of deferred tax liabilities
(before adjustments by ownership share) 1,225,903
Non-controlling interests (8,713)
The Bank’s ownership share in equity method investees’unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities (5,503)
Total ¥ 1,211,686
(Notes)
1. “Net unrealized gains (losses)” shown in the above table excludes ¥192,118 million of revaluation gains on securities as a

result of application of the fair value hedge accounting method, which are recorded in current earnings.
2. Unrealized gain in the table above includes ¥16,181 million of net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities invested in

limited partnerships.



65

1111122222..... DDDDDeeeeerrrrriiiiivvvvvaaaaatttttiiiiivvvvveeeeesssss

I. Derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied, the contract amounts or notional principal amounts and the fair
values and related valuation gains (losses) as of the end of the specified fiscal year by transaction type were as follows. The contract
and other amounts do not represent the market risk exposures associated with the relevant derivatives.

(1) Interest rate-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Contract amount Valuation

gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value
TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Interest rate futures Sold ¥ 295,526 ¥ 129,840 ¥ (2,426) ¥ (2,426)

Bought 86,089 12,461 1,699 1,699
OOOOOvvvvveeeeerrrrr-----ttttthhhhheeeee-----cccccooooouuuuunnnnnttttteeeeerrrrr (((((“““““OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC”””””))))) tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::

Forward rate
agreements

Sold 1,324,109 277,639 (18,021) (18,021)
Bought 517,868 358,596 3,211 3,211

Interest rate swaps Receivable fixed rate/
Payable floating rate 255,708,058 206,837,482 (1,391,645) (1,391,645)

Receivable floating
rate/
Payable fixed rate

252,714,391 208,199,610 1,778,640 1,778,640

Receivable floating
rate/
Payable floating rate

21,675,637 15,974,125 4,250 4,250

Receivable fixed rate/
Payable fixed rate 1,429,671 1,371,059 6,491 6,491

Interest rate swaptions Sold 1,665,814 1,569,088 (39,730) 4,401
Bought 2,178,141 1,574,097 42,083 (17,830)

Other Sold 3,344,105 2,338,331 (24,602) (2,617)
Bought 4,479,132 3,504,787 3,342 (29,033)

Total ― ― ¥ 363,292 ¥ 337,119

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
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(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Contract amount Valuation
gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value

TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Interest rate futures Sold ¥ 417,504 ¥ 188,205 ¥ 2,746 ¥ 2,746

Bought 241,298 44,295 239 239
Interest rate options Sold 75,454 － (13) 20

Bought 61,042 － 21 (2)
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::

Forward rate
agreements

Sold 2,509,281 443,249 18,635 18,635
Bought 1,177,839 115,096 (4,035) (4,035)

Interest rate swaps Receivable fixed rate/
Payable floating rate 283,333,838 228,042,608 (4,716,723) (4,716,723)

Receivable floating
rate/
Payable fixed rate

281,009,671 229,693,457 4,887,390 4,887,390

Receivable floating
rate/
Payable floating rate

18,102,258 12,081,952 9,215 9,215

Receivable fixed rate/
Payable fixed rate 1,397,939 1,357,516 5,176 5,176

Interest rate swaptions Sold 1,808,098 1,450,399 (39,574) 1,175
Bought 5,566,936 4,907,279 54,852 (11,909)

Other Sold 4,026,307 2,748,101 (19,938) 5,003
Bought 5,203,600 3,857,931 3,009 (32,930)

Total ― ― ¥ 201,002 ¥ 164,000

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
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(2) Currency-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Contract amount Valuation

gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value
TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Currency futures Sold ¥ 90,298 ¥ － ¥ (220) ¥ (220)

Bought 710,000 86,768 9,739 9,739
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Currency swaps 43,715,788 33,165,397 (45,133) (45,133)
Forward contracts on foreign exchange 169,722,948 14,727,110 232,635 232,635
Currency options Sold 7,851,328 1,806,322 (143,410) 2,124

Bought 7,383,179 1,897,852 153,027 (13,144)
Total ― ― ¥ 206,637 ¥ 186,000

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Contract amount Valuation
gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value

TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Currency futures Sold ¥ 169,077 ¥ － ¥ 171 ¥ 171

Bought 397,198 93,995 (953) (953)
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Currency swaps 46,183,496 32,879,739 (33,112) (33,112)
Forward contracts on foreign exchange 185,929,046 16,805,296 189,232 189,232
Currency options Sold 9,336,203 2,351,464 (157,790) 2,632

Bought 9,424,743 2,563,837 170,741 (11,415)
Total ― ― ¥ 168,288 ¥ 146,554

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
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(3) Equity-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Contract amount Valuation

gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value
TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Stock index futures Sold ¥ 1,882 ¥ － ¥ 29 ¥ 29

Bought 176 － 2 2
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::

OTC securities index
swap transactions

Receivable index
volatility/
Payable interest rate

3,251 3,251 1,229 1,229

Receivable interest rate/
Payable index
volatility

－ － － －

Total ― ― ¥ 1,260 ¥ 1,260

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Contract amount Valuation
gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value

TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Stock index futures Sold ¥ 122,188 ¥ － ¥ 3,979 ¥ 3,979

Bought 2,967 － (96) (96)
Stock index options Sold 1,050 － (15) 0

Bought 1,080 － 28 21
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::

OTC securities index
swap transactions

Receivable index
volatility/
Payable interest rate

3,251 3,251 188 188

Receivable interest rate/
Payable index
volatility

－ － － －

Total ― ― ¥ 4,084 ¥ 4,093

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
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(4) Bond-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Contract amount Valuation

gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value
TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Bond futures Sold ¥ 93,769 ¥ － ¥ (84) ¥ (84)

Bought 123,284 － 178 178
Bond futures options Sold 15,968 － (87) (1)

Bought 17,648 － 96 7
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Bond OTC options Sold 2,094,174 － (3,876) (1,435)

Bought 2,094,174 － 2,284 (592)
Total return swaps Sold － － － －

Bought 158,625 158,625 (10,424) (10,424)
Total ― ― ¥ (11,914) ¥ (12,353)

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Contract amount Valuation
gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value

TTTTTrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss llllliiiiisssssttttteeeeeddddd ooooonnnnn eeeeexxxxxccccchhhhhaaaaannnnngggggeeeeesssss:::::
Bond futures Sold ¥ 51,857 ¥ － ¥ (186) ¥ (186)

Bought 77,989 － 377 377
Bond futures options Sold 1,764 － (15) (0)

Bought 3,528 － 30 11
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Bond OTC options Sold 1,015,720 － (2,898) (1,980)

Bought 1,015,720 － 452 (665)
Bond forward contracts Sold 694 － (4) (4)

Bought － － － －

Total return swaps Sold － － － －

Bought 158,625 133,131 (3,949) (3,949)
Total ― ― ¥ (6,194) ¥ (6,399)

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
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(5) Credit-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Contract amount Valuation

gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Credit default options Sold ¥ 1,172,659 ¥ 1,126,518 ¥ (9,166) ¥ (9,166)

Bought 1,202,707 1,099,378 (10,333) (10,333)
Total ― ― ¥ (19,499) ¥ (19,499)

(Notes)
1. The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
2. “Sold” refers to transactions where the credit risk is assumed, and “Bought” refers to transactions where the credit risk

is transferred.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Contract amount Valuation
gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value

OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Credit default options Sold ¥ 914,502 ¥ 895,349 ¥ (11,119) ¥ (11,119)

Bought 1,004,824 929,595 (7,601) (7,601)
Total ― ― ¥ (18,720) ¥ (18,720)

(Notes)
1. The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
2. “Sold” refers to transactions where the credit risk is assumed, and “Bought” refers to transactions where the credit risk

is transferred.
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(6) Other derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Contract amount Valuation

gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value
OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Earthquake derivatives Sold ¥ 13,500 ¥ 6,500 ¥ (534) ¥ 153

Bought 13,500 6,500 429 (567)
Other Sold 10,692 5,666 (51) (51)

Bought 12,656 4,966 67 67
Total ― ― ¥ (89) ¥ (398)

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Contract amount Valuation
gains (losses)Total Over one year Fair value

OOOOOTTTTTCCCCC tttttrrrrraaaaannnnnsssssaaaaaccccctttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss:::::
Earthquake derivatives Sold ¥ 13,500 ¥ 13,500 ¥ (218) ¥ 93

Bought 13,830 13,500 546 (541)
Other Sold 4,818 4,818 (54) (54)

Bought 7,505 7,466 54 54
Total ― ― ¥ 327 ¥ (448)

(Note)
The transactions above are stated at fair value and the related valuation gains (losses) are reported in the consolidated

statements of income.
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II. Derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied, their contract amounts or notional principal amounts and the fair
values as of the end of the specified fiscal year by transaction type and hedge accounting method were as follows. The contract and
other amounts do not represent the market risk exposures associated with the relevant derivatives.

(1) Interest rate-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Hedge accounting

method Transaction type Major hedged item Contract amount
Contract amount
due after one year Fair value

Deferred hedge
accounting

Interest rate swaps:
Receivable fixed
rate/
Payable
floating rate

Interest earning
financial assets or
interest bearing
financial liabilities
such as loans,
deposits and other
transactions

¥ 39,628,156 ¥ 36,087,951 ¥ (910,920)

Receivable
floating rate/
Payable fixed
rate

5,046,608 3,857,818 (27,472)

Total ― ― ¥ (938,393)

Note: These derivatives are mainly accounted for by applying the deferred hedge accounting in accordance with JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guidelines No. 24.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Hedge accounting
method Transaction type Major hedged item Contract amount

Contract amount
due after one year Fair value

Deferred hedge
accounting

Interest rate swaps:
Receivable fixed
rate/
Payable
floating rate

Interest earning
financial assets or
interest bearing
financial liabilities
such as loans,
deposits and other
transactions

¥ 16,907,502 ¥ 13,019,682 ¥ (573,837)

Receivable
floating rate/
Payable fixed
rate

6,091,993 5,976,662 5,829

Total ― ― ¥ (568,008)

Note: These derivatives are mainly accounted for by applying the deferred hedge accounting in accordance with JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guidelines No. 24.
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(2) Currency-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Hedge accounting

method Transaction type Major hedged item Contract amount
Contract amount
due after one year Fair value

Deferred hedge
accounting Currency swaps

Loans, securities,
deposits and others
denominated in
foreign currencies

¥ 10,613,909 ¥ 3,554,599 ¥ (124,810)

Note: These derivatives are mainly accounted for by applying the deferred hedge accounting in accordance with JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guidelines No. 25.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Hedge accounting
method Transaction type Major hedged item Contract amount

Contract amount
due after one year Fair value

Deferred hedge
accounting Currency swaps

Loans, securities,
deposits and others
denominated in
foreign currencies

¥ 8,984,956 ¥ 1,728,845 ¥ 96,539

Note: These derivatives are mainly accounted for by applying the deferred hedge accounting in accordance with JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guidelines No. 25.

(3) Equity-related derivatives
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024
Hedge accounting

method Transaction type Major hedged item Contract amount
Contract amount
due after one year Fair value

Fair value hedge
accounting Total return swaps

Available-for-sale
securities
(equity securities)

¥ 697,415 ¥ 697,415 ¥ (28,231)

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2025

Hedge accounting
method Transaction type Major hedged item Contract amount

Contract amount
due after one year Fair value

Fair value hedge
accounting Total return swaps

Available-for-sale
securities
(equity securities)

¥ 376,976 ¥ 376,976 ¥ 17,009
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1111133333..... LLLLLiiiiiaaaaabbbbbiiiiillllliiiiitttttyyyyy fffffooooorrrrr RRRRReeeeetttttiiiiirrrrreeeeemmmmmeeeeennnnnttttt BBBBBeeeeennnnneeeeefffffiiiiitttttsssss

I. Outline of retirement benefit plans

The Bank and its domestic subsidiaries have retirement benefit plans with defined benefits, such as defined benefit corporate
pension plans and lump-sum severance payment plans. In certain cases of severance of employees, additional severance benefits
may be paid, which are not included in retirement benefit obligations calculated actuarially pursuant to applicable accounting
standard for retirement benefits.

Certain overseas branches of the Bank and certain overseas subsidiaries also have benefit plans with defined benefits.

II. Defined benefit plans

(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 1,371,532 ¥ 1,302,209
of which foreign exchange translation adjustments (19,461) (2,061)
Service cost 39,061 38,275
Interest cost 24,722 28,265
Actuarial gains (losses) (60,221) (112,217)
Benefits paid (79,636) (74,586)
Past service cost (601) (2,118)
Others 5,291 (2,547)

Balance at end of year ¥ 1,300,148 ¥ 1,177,280
(Note) Some overseas branches of the Bank and some consolidated subsidiaries have adopted the simplified method in calculating

their projected benefit obligation.

(2) The changes in plan assets for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 2,138,152 ¥ 2,485,465
of which foreign exchange translation adjustments (24,770) 1,816
Expected return on plan assets 63,612 66,472
Actuarial gains (losses) 336,801 50,963
Contributions from the employer 10,489 11,063
Benefits paid (60,549) (54,191)
Others (1,223) (215)

Balance at end of year ¥ 2,487,282 ¥ 2,559,558
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(3) A reconciliation between liability for retirement benefits and asset for retirement benefits recorded in the consolidated balance
sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Funded defined benefit obligation ¥ 1,208,658 ¥ 1,102,935
Plan assets (2,487,282) (2,559,558)

(1,278,624) (1,456,622)
Unfunded defined benefit obligation 91,489 74,344
Net liability (asset) arising from defined benefit obligation ¥ (1,187,134) ¥ (1,382,277)

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Liability for retirement benefits ¥ 93,352 ¥ 95,432
Asset for retirement benefits (1,280,486) (1,477,710)
Net liability (asset) arising from defined benefit obligation ¥ (1,187,134) ¥ (1,382,277)

(4) The components of net periodic retirement benefit costs for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
Service cost ¥ 39,061 ¥ 38,275
Interest cost 24,722 28,265
Expected return on plan assets (63,612) (66,472)
Amortization of past service cost (69) (855)
Recognized actuarial losses (38,390) (66,817)
Others (additional temporary severance benefits, etc.) 23,755 11,117
Net periodic retirement benefit costs ¥ (14,532) ¥ (56,487)
(Note) Retirement benefit costs of some overseas branches of the Bank and some consolidated subsidiaries which have adopted the

simplified method are included in “Service cost.”

(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income taxes and income tax effect) in respect of defined
retirement benefit plans for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Past service cost ¥ 567 ¥ 3,562
Actuarial gains (losses) 356,644 98,726
Total ¥ 357,212 ¥ 102,288

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before income taxes and income tax effect) in respect of
defined retirement benefit plans as of March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Unrecognized past service cost ¥ 291 ¥ 3,854
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses) 547,239 645,966
Total ¥ 547,531 ¥ 649,820
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(7) Plan assets

(a) Components of plan assets

Plan assets consisted as of March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Domestic equity investments 34.41% 35.39%
Domestic debt investments 15.65 15.45
Foreign equity investments 12.81 11.57
Foreign debt investments 23.80 22.91
General accounts of life insurance 7.25 6.86
Others 6.08 7.82
Total 100.00 100.00
(Note) Total plan assets include retirement benefit trusts, which were set up for corporate pension plans, accounting for

29.66% and 33.34% as of March 31, 2024 and 2025, respectively.

(b) Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the allocation of the plan assets which are expected
currently and in the future and the long-term rates of return which are expected currently and in the future on the various
components of the plan assets.

(8) Actuarial assumptions used for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Discount rate:
Domestic 0.22% - 1.81% 0.70% - 2.63%
Overseas 1.92% - 9.63% 1.99% - 11.96%

Expected salary increase rate:
Domestic 2.63% - 4.50% 2.63% - 5.30%
Overseas 2.20% - 12.80% 2.20% - 12.80%

Expected rate of return on plan assets:
Domestic 2.28% - 3.00% 1.85% - 3.39%
Overseas 3.10% - 9.63% 3.30% - 11.96%
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1111144444..... SSSSStttttoooooccccckkkkk OOOOOppppptttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss

None.
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1111155555..... IIIIInnnnncccccooooommmmmeeeee TTTTTaaaaaxxxxxeeeeesssss

I. The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in “Deferred tax assets and liabilities” as of March 31,
2024 and 2025 were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Deferred tax assets:
Excess over deductible limits on provision for
allowance for credit losses and write-offs of loans ¥ 356,927 ¥ 254,249

Revaluation losses on securities 52,153 65,832
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities 134,918 3,895
Liability for retirement benefits 15,392 16,820
Reserve for contingent losses 25,248 22,266
Depreciation and impairment losses 88,521 81,249
Tax loss carryforwards 7,906 14,527
Cost adjustments on land merger 20,274 20,284
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting 360,751 437,402
Other 295,486 273,197

Subtotal 1,357,579 1,189,726
Less valuation allowance (87,104) (93,375)
Total ¥ 1,270,475 ¥ 1,096,350

Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities ¥ (752,478) ¥ (554,979)
Revaluation gains on securities at merger (44,435) (37,701)
Unrealized gains on lease transactions (15,042) (19,281)
Asset for retirement benefits (92,343) (135,861)
Gains on establishment of retirement benefit trusts (43,591) (41,803)
Gains (losses) on retirement benefit trusts (53,906) (62,461)
Retained earnings of subsidiaries and affiliates (160,208) (212,969)
Other (129,470) (150,194)

Total ¥ (1,291,477) ¥ (1,215,253)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥ (21,002) ¥ (118,902)

(a) Changes in presentation
"Gains (losses) on retirement benefit trusts" which was included in "Other" of deferred tax liabilities as of March 31, 2024 is
reported as a separate line-item as of March 31, 2025 due to its increased significance. In order to apply this change in
presentation, the information in this Note 15 as of March 31, 2024 has been reclassified.
As a result, the amount which was previously presented as "Other" of deferred tax liabilities as of March 31, 2024 totaling
¥(183,377) million has been reclassified as "Gains (losses) on retirement benefit trusts" of ¥(53,906) million and "Other" of
¥(129,470) million.
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Ⅱ . The reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 and 2025 was as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025
Normal effective statutory tax rate 30.62 % 30.62 %
Elimination of dividends received from subsidiaries and affiliates 3.50 1.81
Permanent non-taxable differences (e.g., non-taxable dividend
income) (3.45) (2.25)
Change in valuation allowances (2.14) (0.39)
Taxation on unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (2.33) －

Equity in gains of the equity method investees (0.90) (0.88)
Tax rate difference of overseas subsidiaries (3.36) (3.11)
Retained earnings of subsidiaries and affiliates 2.15 2.94
Amortization of goodwill 0.11 0.21
Taxation on gains on sales of shares of subsidiaries (0.44) (0.47)
Other 2.96 (1.65)
Actual effective tax rate 26.72 % 26.83 %

Ⅲ. Adjustments to the amounts of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities due to changes in corporate income tax rates
The “Act to Partially Amend the Income Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 13, 2025)" were promulgated on March 31, 2025, and the
"Special Corporate Tax for National Defense" will be imposed starting from fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2026. As
a result, the statutory tax rate used in computing deferred tax assets and liabilities is increased from 30.62% to 31.52% as applied
to the temporary differences estimated to be eliminated in the fiscal years beginning on and after April 1, 2026.
As of March 31, 2025, this tax rate change resulted in an increase of ¥5,516 million in net deferred tax liabilities, a decrease of
¥15,890 million in net unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, an increase of ¥12,132 million in net deferred
gains (losses) on hedging instruments, a decrease of ¥5,971 million in remeasurements of defined benefit plans, and a decrease
of ¥4,213 million in deferred income taxes. As of the same date, deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation increased ¥2,317
million, and land revaluation excess decreased the same amount.

Ⅳ. Accounting treatment of corporate tax and local corporation tax, and tax-effect accounting relating to corporate tax and local
corporate tax
The Bank and some of its domestic consolidated subsidiaries, upon adoption of the Group Tax Sharing System, have applied
accounting treatment of corporate tax and local corporation tax, and tax-effect accounting relating to corporate tax and local
corporate tax, in accordance with ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force Report No. 42, “Practical Solution on the Accounting and
Disclosure under the Group Tax Sharing System” (ASBJ PITF No. 42, August 12, 2021).
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1111166666..... BBBBBuuuuusssssiiiiinnnnneeeeessssssssss CCCCCooooommmmmbbbbbiiiiinnnnnaaaaatttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss

Transactions under common control

(au Kabucom Securities Co., Ltd.became a consolidated subsidiary)

Pursuant to an absorption-type company split agreement (the “Absorption-type Split Agreement”) executed on November 14,

2024, the Bank succeeded to the shares of au Kabucom Securities Co., Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Securities

Holdings engaged in the financial instruments business, from Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings as of January 24, 2025. As a

result, au Kabucom Securities became a consolidated subsidiary of the Bank. Furthermore, pursuant to a share transfer agreement

(the “Share Transfer Agreement”) executed on the same date as the Absorption-type Split Agreement, the Bank acquired the

additional shares of au Kabucom Securities from au Financial Holdings Corporation (“au Financial Holdings”) on January 31,

2025, resulting in au Kabucom Securities becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank (the succession of shares based on the

Absorption-type Split Agreement and the acquisition of shares based on the Share Transfer Agreement are hereinafter collectively

referred to as the “Reorganization”).

As of February 1, 2025, au Kabucom Securities changed its trade name to Mitsubishi UFJ eSmart Securities Co., Ltd. (“Mitsubishi

UFJ eSmart Securities”).

I. Overview and objectives of the Reorganization

MUFG, the parent company of the Bank, and KDDI CORPORATION have continued to foster productive and close

collaboration for over 15 years. During this period of time, the business environment surrounding both corporate groups has

continued to change rapidly. This has led the two companies to review the nature of their collaboration. In areas in which the

collaboration has already produced results, the companies have decided to streamline structures to enhance management

efficiency as the main focus, clarifying the respective roles and responsibilities of each corporate group. As a result of

discussions regarding collaboration in their jointly invested company, au Kabucom Securities, the Bank acquired a 49% stake

in the company from au Financial Holdings.

As the Bank acquired a 51% stake in au Kabucom Securities from Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings prior to this acquisition,

the company became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank. The company subsequently changed its name to Mitsubishi UFJ

eSmart Securities. Mitsubishi UFJ eSmart Securities, as MUFG’s core online securities company, aims to establish a strong

position in the industry by fundamentally strengthening its ties with MUFG’s customer base and fully leveraging its

capabilities across all areas.

II. Overview of the accounting treatment applied

The transaction is treated as a transaction under common control under ASBJ Statement No. 21 “Accounting Standard for

Business Combinations” (ASBJ, January 16, 2019), ASBJ Guidance No. 10 “Implementation Guidance on Accounting

Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ, November 1, 2024), and

“Practical Guidelines on the Procedures to Consolidate Equity Accounts in Consolidated Financial Statements” (ASBJ, July

1, 2024).

III. Succession of shares through an absorption-type company split based on the Absorption-type Split Agreement

(1) Amounts of assets and liabilities transferred to the Bank

Amount of assets ¥1,152,204 million, including segregated deposits of ¥614,060 million

Amount of liabilities ¥1,109,853 million, including deposits received of ¥401,026 million

(2) Acquisition cost and breakdown by type of consideration

As this absorption-type company split was carried out without consideration between the Bank and Mitsubishi UFJ Securities

Holdings, both of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of MUFG, there was no allotment of shares, or no delivery of cash or

other assets, to the splitting company.

The Bank succeeded to shares of the subsidiary at the book value recorded by Mitsubishi UFJ Securities Holdings.

Book value of shares of the subsidiary ¥42,455 million
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IV. Acquisition of shares based on the Share Transfer Agreement

(1) Acquisition cost and type of consideration for transactions with non-controlling shareholders

Consideration for the acquisition Cash ¥91,700 million

Acquisition cost ¥91,700 million

(2) Changes in the Bank’s equity resulting from transactions with non-controlling shareholders

(a) Main factor for the change in capital surplus

Acquisition of additional shares of the subsidiary

(b) Decrease in capital surplus due to transactions with non-controlling shareholders

¥70,947 million
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1111177777..... RRRRReeeeevvvvveeeeennnnnuuuuueeeee RRRRReeeeecccccooooogggggnnnnniiiiitttttiiiiiooooonnnnn
Disaggregated information on revenues from contracts with customers

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024 2025

Fees and commissions ¥ 1,115,580 1,282,912

Fees and commissions on remittances and transfers 169,903 180,781

Fees and commissions on deposits 41,880 39,791

Fees and commissions on loans (*1) 426,112 487,848

Fees and commissions on security-related services 67,064 99,518

Fees and commissions on credit card business (*1) 64,607 87,172

Guarantee fees (*2) 76,696 79,607

Other fees and commissions (*1) 269,315 308,194

(Notes)
1. Include revenues that are not within the scope of ASBJ Statement No.29, “Accounting Standard for Revenue

Recognition.(September 13, 2024)”
2. Guarantee fees are not included within the scope of ASBJ Statement No.29, “Accounting Standard for Revenue

Recognition.(September 13, 2024)”
3. Fees and commissions on remittances and transfers were generated mainly through the Retail & Digital Business Unit,

the Commercial Banking & Wealth Management Business Unit, the Japanese Corporate & Investment Banking Business
Unit and the Global Corporate & Investment Banking Business Unit. Fees and commissions on deposits were generated
mainly through the Retail & Digital Business Unit and the Global Commercial Banking Business Unit. Fees and
commissions on loans were generated mainly through the Retail & Digital Business Unit, the Japanese Corporate &
Investment Banking Business Unit and the Global Corporate & Investment Banking Business Unit. Fees and
commissions on security-related services were generated mainly through the Retail & Digital Business Unit, the
Commercial Banking & Wealth Management Business Unit, the Japanese Corporate & Investment Banking Business
Unit and the Global Corporate & Investment Banking Business Unit. Fees and commissions on credit card business were
generated mainly through the Retail & Digital Business Unit and the Global Commercial Banking Business Unit.

4. For details of the performance obligations and the timing of revenue recognition for each revenue category, refer to
“(15)Revenue Recognition” under “1. Significant Accounting Policies Applied to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.”
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1111188888..... SSSSSeeeeegggggmmmmmeeeeennnnnttttt IIIIInnnnnfffffooooorrrrrmmmmmaaaaatttttiiiiiooooonnnnn

I. Business segment information

(1) Summary of reporting segments

The Bank’s reporting segments are business units of the Bank whose Executive Committee, the decision-making body for the
execution of its business operations, regularly reviews to make decisions regarding allocation of management resources and
evaluate performance.

The Bank makes and executes unified group-wide strategies based on customer characteristics and the nature of business.
Accordingly, the Bank has adopted customer-based and business-based segmentation, which consists of the following reporting
segments: Retail & Digital Business Unit, Commercial Banking & Wealth Management Business Unit, Japanese Corporate &
Investment Banking Business Unit, Global Commercial Banking Business Unit, Global Corporate & Investment Banking
Business Unit, Global Markets Business Unit and Other units.

Retail & Digital Business Unit: Providing financial services to individual customers (excluding wealth management
customers) and corporate customers through the three channels under the concept of
“Real (Face-to-Face) × Remote × Digital”

Commercial Banking & Wealth
Management Business Unit:

Providing financial services to corporate and wealth management customers

Japanese Corporate & Investment
Banking Business Unit:

Providing financial services to large Japanese corporate customers in and outside
Japan

Global Commercial Banking
Business Unit:

Providing financial services to individual and small to medium-sized corporate
customers through overseas commercial bank investees, etc. of the Group

Global Corporate & Investment
Banking Business Unit:

Providing financial services to large non-Japanese corporate customers

Global Markets Business Unit: Providing services relating to foreign currency exchange, funds and investment
securities to customers, as well as conducting market transactions and managing
liquidity and cash for the Group

Other units: Other than the businesses mentioned above

(Changes relating to reporting segments)
MUFG, which is a parent company of the Bank, has reorganized its previous Digital Service Business Group and Retail &
Commercial Banking Business Group into Retail & Digital Business Group and Commercial Banking & Wealth Management
Business Group in order to take fuller advantage of our strengths as a corporate group providing comprehensive financial
services, under the medium-term business plan that was commenced in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025.
Consequently, the Group has also reorganized its previous Digital Service Business Unit and Retail & Commercial Banking
Business Unit into Retail & Digital Business Unit and Commercial Banking & Wealth Management Business Unit and has
changed its reporting segments to the current segmentation based on the reorganized business groups.

The business segment information for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024 has been restated based on the new segmentation.
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(2) Methods of calculation of gross operating income, operating profit (loss), and fixed assets for each reporting segment

The accounting methods applied to the reported business segments, except the scope of consolidation, are generally consistent
with the methods described in “1. Significant Accounting Policies Applied to the Consolidated Financial Statements” . The
scope of consolidation includes the Bank's major subsidiaries. The reported figures are generally prepared based on internal
managerial accounting rules before elimination of inter-segment transactions and other consolidation adjustments. Net revenue
and operating expenses attributable to multiple segments are reported in accordance with internal managerial accounting rules
generally calculated based on market value.
Fixed assets for each reporting segment disclosed below represent the tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets related to
the Bank as allocated to each reporting segment.

(Changes in the method of calculation of operating profit (loss) of each reporting segment)
In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025, the Bank changed the method of allocation of revenue and operating expenses among
reporting segments and accordingly changed the method of calculation of operating profit (loss) of each reporting segment.
The business segment information for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024, has been restated based on the new calculation
method.

(3) Information on net revenue, operating profit (loss), and fixed assets for each reporting segment

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

(in millions of yen)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

Retail &
Digital

Commercial
Banking &
Wealth
Manage
ment

Japanese
Corporate

&
Investment
Banking

Global
Commercial
Banking

Global
Corporate

&
Investment
Banking

Customer
business
units

subtotal

Global
Markets Other units Total

Gross operating income ¥ 320,470 ¥ 404,098 ¥ 833,491 ¥ 684,825 ¥ 818,855 ¥3,061,741 ¥ 120,672 ¥ 56,391 ¥3,238,805
Non-consolidated 294,624 373,585 724,611 29,111 765,826 2,187,758 20,210 70,051 2,278,019
Net interest
income 239,999 194,966 488,787 29,268 399,786 1,352,808 37,180 100,180 1,490,169

Net non-interest
income 54,625 178,619 235,823 (157) 366,039 834,950 (16,970) (30,129) 787,850

Subsidiaries 25,845 30,513 108,880 655,713 53,029 873,983 100,461 (13,659) 960,785

Operating expenses 273,633 260,294 294,857 382,204 395,451 1,606,442 140,305 52,442 1,799,189

Operating profit (loss) ¥ 46,836 ¥ 143,804 ¥ 538,633 ¥ 302,620 ¥ 423,404 ¥1,455,299 ¥ (19,633) ¥ 3,949 ¥1,439,615
Fixed assets
at period end 222,897 156,576 159,050 1,636 170,913 711,073 85,903 381,849 1,178,826

Increase in fixed assets 44,959 30,149 39,429 459 32,483 147,481 20,326 17,471 185,279
Depreciation and

amortization 18,533 14,707 38,559 253 42,254 114,307 26,912 6,048 147,269

(Notes)
1. “Gross operating income” corresponds to net sales of non-banking industries.
2. “Gross operating income” includes net interest income, net fees and commission, net trading income and net other

operating income.
3. “Operating expenses” includes personnel expenses and premise expenses.
4. “Fixed assets at period end” for each reporting segment in the above table represents those related to the Bank. Those

fixed assets and consolidation adjustments related to consolidated subsidiaries, which are not allocated to reporting
segments, were ¥589,859 million. With respect to such fixed assets not allocated to reporting segments, certain related
expenses are allocated to reporting segments on a reasonable basis.

5. “Increase in fixed assets” for each reporting segment in the above table represents such increase related to the Bank.
6. “Depreciation and amortization” for each reporting segment in the above table represents those related to the Bank.
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For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

(in millions of yen)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

Retail &
Digital

Commercial
Banking &
Wealth
Manage
ment

Japanese
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Global
Commercial
Banking

Global
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Customer
business
units

subtotal

Global
Markets Other units Total

Gross operating income ¥ 387,185 ¥ 480,466 ¥ 864,512 ¥ 969,328 ¥ 874,994 ¥3,576,487 ¥ (431,078) ¥ 65,852 ¥3,211,262

Non-consolidated 358,047 447,325 756,446 26,994 811,829 2,400,642 (522,801) (5,675) 1,872,164
Net interest
income 293,725 261,638 511,351 27,956 427,565 1,522,237 38,739 14,595 1,575,572

Net non-interest
income 64,321 185,687 245,094 (962) 384,264 878,405 (561,541) (20,271) 296,592

Subsidiaries 29,137 33,140 108,065 942,334 63,165 1,175,844 91,723 71,528 1,339,097

Operating expenses 308,146 272,442 305,007 531,225 415,110 1,831,932 152,461 28,156 2,012,550

Operating profit (loss) ¥ 79,038 ¥ 208,023 ¥ 559,505 ¥ 438,103 ¥ 459,884 ¥1,744,555 ¥ (583,539) ¥ 37,696 ¥1,198,711
Fixed assets
at period end 245,658 171,508 160,464 2,045 160,913 740,591 79,843 362,120 1,182,555

Increase in fixed assets 44,071 31,945 40,800 646 26,503 143,967 20,206 27,153 191,327
Depreciation and
amortization 28,951 16,981 38,457 280 39,152 123,823 25,184 4,116 153,124

(Notes)
1. “Gross operating income” corresponds to net sales of non-banking industries.
2. “Gross operating income” includes net interest income, net fees and commission, net trading income and net other

operating income.
3. “Operating expenses” includes personnel expenses and premise expenses.
4. “Fixed assets at period end” for each reporting segment in the above table represents those related to the Bank. Those

fixed assets and consolidation adjustments related to consolidated subsidiaries, which are not allocated to reporting
segments, were ¥662,091 million. With respect to such fixed assets not allocated to reporting segments, certain related
expenses are allocated to reporting segments on a reasonable basis.

5. “Increase in fixed assets” for each reporting segment in the above table represents such increase related to the Bank.
6. “Depreciation and amortization” for each reporting segment in the above table represents those related to the Bank.
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(4) A reconciliation of the ordinary profit under the internal management reporting system and net operating income per reportable
segment information was as follows:

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal years ended March 31,
2024 2025

Total operating profit of reporting segments ¥ 1,439,615 ¥ 1,198,711
Operating profit of consolidated subsidiaries excluded
from reporting segments 22,012 13,920

Provision for general allowance for credit losses 1,284 －

Credit related expenses (478,742) (194,205)
Reversal of allowance for credit losses － 107,208
Gains on reversal of reserve for contingent losses included
in credit costs － 4,260

Gains on loans written-off 75,872 85,399
Net gains on equity securities and other securities 285,362 440,199
Equity in earnings of the equity method investees 39,203 50,465
Amortization of net unrecognized actuarial gain or loss 38,390 66,817
Gain on cancellation of sleeping deposit accounts 44 －

Others (72,767) (16,267)
Ordinary profit in the consolidated statement of income ¥ 1,350,277 ¥ 1,756,511

Notes:
1. “Credit-related expenses” includes write-offs of loans and provision of specific allowance for credit losses.
2. “Net gains on equity securities and other securities” includes gains or losses on sales of equity securities and losses

on write-down of equity securities.
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II. Related information

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

(1) Information by type of service
Omitted because it is similar to the above-explained reporting segment information.

(2) Geographical information
(a) Ordinary income

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

Japan USA

North America
(except for
USA) Latin America

Europe/Middle
East Thailand

Asia/Oceania
(except for
Thailand) Total

¥ 2,973,701 ¥ 2,239,581 ¥ 82,763 ¥ 105,194 ¥ 765,146 ¥ 790,809 ¥ 1,527,508 ¥ 8,484,706

(Notes)
1. “Ordinary income” corresponds to net sales of non-banking industries.
2. “Ordinary income” is classified into countries or geographic regions based on the locations of the head office or

branches of the Bank and subsidiaries.

(b) Tangible fixed assets
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2024

Japan North America Latin America
Europe/Middle

East Thailand

Asia/Oceania
(except for
Thailand) Total

¥ 670,701 ¥ 52,791 ¥ 398 ¥ 5,989 ¥ 107,658 ¥ 67,259 ¥ 904,799

(3) Information by major customer
None.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

(1) Information by type of service
Omitted because it is similar to the above-explained reporting segment information.

(2) Geographical information
(a) Ordinary income

(in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

Japan USA

North America
(except for
USA) Latin America

Europe/Middle
East Thailand

Asia/Oceania
(except for
Thailand) Total

¥ 3,814,706 ¥ 2,385,219 ¥ 64,438 ¥ 113,671 ¥ 700,436 ¥ 1,082,398 ¥ 1,546,537 ¥ 9,707,408

(Notes)
1. “Ordinary income” corresponds to net sales of non-banking industries.
2. “Ordinary income” is classified into countries or geographic regions based on the locations of the head office or

branches of the Bank and subsidiaries.

(b) Tangible fixed assets
(in millions of yen)

March 31, 2025

Japan North America Latin America
Europe/Middle

East Thailand

Asia/Oceania
(except for
Thailand) Total

¥ 657,228 ¥ 66,650 ¥ 344 ¥ 6,547 ¥ 125,055 ¥ 70,260 ¥ 926,087

(3) Information by major customer
None.



88

III. Information on impairment losses on fixed assets by reporting segment

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
(in millions of yen)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

Retail &
Digital

Commercial
Banking &
Wealth
Manage
ment

Japanese
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Global
Commercial
Banking

Global
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Customer
business
units

subtotal

Global
Markets Other units Total

Impairment losses ¥ 1,301 ¥ 834 ¥ 3,111 ¥ 0 ¥ 7,236 ¥ 12,484 ¥ 1,773 ¥ 238 ¥ 14,496

(Note)
Impairment loss on fixed assets of the Bank’s subsidiaries is not allocated to the reportable segments. The impairment loss was
¥9,563 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
(in millions of yen)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

Retail &
Digital

Commercial
Banking &
Wealth
Manage
ment

Japanese
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Global
Commercial
Banking

Global
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Customer
business
units

subtotal

Global
Markets Other units Total

Impairment losses ¥ 990 ¥ 639 ¥ 240 ¥ 1 ¥ 498 ¥ 2,370 ¥ 112 ¥ 129 ¥ 2,612

(Note)
Impairment loss on fixed assets of the Bank’s subsidiaries is not allocated to the reportable segments. The impairment loss was
¥56,443 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2025.

IV. Information on amortization and unamortized balance of goodwill by reporting segment

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
(in millions of yen)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

Retail &
Digital

Commercial
Banking &
Wealth
Manage
ment

Japanese
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Global
Commercial
Banking

Global
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Customer
business
units
subtotal

Global
Markets Other units Total

Amortization ¥ 630 ¥ 260 ¥ － ¥ 3,935 ¥ 3,652 ¥ 8,479 ¥ － ¥ － ¥ 8,479
Unamortized balance
at period end 11,978 717 － 94,461 38,405 145,562 － － 145,562

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
(in millions of yen)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025

Retail &
Digital

Commercial
Banking &
Wealth
Manage
ment

Japanese
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Global
Commercial
Banking

Global
Corporate &
Investment
Banking

Customer
business
units
subtotal

Global
Markets Other units Total

Amortization ¥ 1,540 ¥ 65 ¥ － ¥ 10,512 ¥ 3,369 ¥ 15,487 ¥ － ¥ － ¥ 15,487
Unamortized balance
at period end 85,634 － － 53,070 35,146 173,851 － － 173,851

V. Information on gains on negative goodwill by reporting segment

None.
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VI. Related-party transactions

(1) Transactions between the Bank and its related parties

(a) Parent company and major shareholders (limited to companies and others)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
Type Name Location Capital

(Millions of
Yen)

Business Ownerships Relationship Transactions Transaction
amount
(Millions of
Yen)

Account Outstanding
balance
(Millions of
Yen)

Parent Mitsubishi
UFJ
Financial
Group, Inc.

Chiyoda-
ku,
Tokyo

¥ 2,141,513 Bank
holding
company

Direct
100.00%

Loans or
others,
Directors or
others

Borrowings
(Note 1)
Payment of
interest
(Note 1)

¥ 466,456

331,536

Borrowed
money
Other
liabilities

¥12,347,545
(Note 2)
73,898

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Notes:

1. The interest rate on borrowings is reasonably determined considering the market rate. Repayment term is the lump-sum
payment method at maturity. No pledged assets are received.

2. Borrowed money represents subordinated loans.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
Type Name Location Capital

(Millions of
Yen)

Business Ownerships Relationship Transactions Transaction
amount
(Millions of
Yen)

Account Outstanding
balance
(Millions of
Yen)

Parent Mitsubishi
UFJ
Financial
Group, Inc.

Chiyoda-
ku,
Tokyo

¥ 2,141,513 Bank
holding
company

Direct
100.00%

Loans or
others,
Directors or
others

Borrowings
(Note 1)
Payment of
interest
(Note 1)

¥ (1,218,324)

333,787

Borrowed
money
Other
liabilities

¥10,611,997
(Note 2)
73,708

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Notes:

1. The interest rate on borrowings is reasonably determined considering the market rate. Repayment term is the lump-sum
payment method at maturity. No pledged assets are received.

2. Borrowed money represents subordinated loans.

(b) Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
There were no applicable transactions to be reported for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025.

(c) Companies that are owned by the same parent company as the Bank (“sister company”) and the Bank’s other affiliates’
subsidiaries
There were no applicable transactions to be reported for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
Type Name Location Capital Business Ownerships Relationship Transactions Transaction

amount
(Millions of
Yen)

Account Outstanding
balance
(Millions of
Yen)

Subsidiary
of the
parent

MUFG
Securities
EMEA plc

London,
UK

GBP
1,847,093
thousand

Securities None Securities
transactions
or others

Purchase and
sales of
other
securities
(Notes 1
and 2)

¥ – – ¥ –

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Notes:

1. Terms and conditions are determined considering the market trends.
2. Transaction amounts are omitted as they are repetitive transactions.
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(d) Directors or major shareholders (limited to individual shareholders)

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
Type Name Occupation Ownerships Relationship Transactions Transaction

amount
(Millions of
Yen)

Account Outstanding
balance
(Millions of
Yen)

Parent’s
director’s
relative

Takayuki
Kondo

– None Relative of
director of the
Bank’s parent

Loans (Note 1)
Receipt of interest
(Note 1)

¥ –
0
Loans and bills
discounted
Other assets

¥ 166

0

Company,
in which a
majority of
the voting
rights is
owned by
directors/
audit &
supervisory
board
members
and their
close
relatives

Yamauchi
Metal
Supply
Co.Ltd.
(Note 2)

Non-ferrous
metal
wholesale
business

None Loans or others Overdraft facility
(Repayment)
(Note 3)

¥ 500 Loans and bills
discounted

¥ –

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Notes:

1. The interest rate on loans is determined considering the market rate and repayment term is the monthly equal payment
method for 26-30 years.

2. Relative of director of the Bank hold 69% of the ownership.
3. The terms and conditions of the contract are determined considering the market trends. The contract term and the

amount are 1 year and 500 million yen.
.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
Type Name Occupation Ownerships Relationship Transactions Transaction

amount
(Millions of
Yen)

Account Outstanding
balance
(Millions of
Yen)

Parent’s
director’s
relative

Takayuki
Kondo

– None Relative of
director of the
Bank’s parent

Loans (Note 1)
Receipt of interest
(Note 1)

¥ –
0
Loans and bills
discounted
Other assets

¥ 74

0
Company,
in which a
majority of
the voting
rights is
owned by
directors/
audit &
supervisory
board
members
and their
close
relatives

Yamauchi
Metal
Supply
Co.Ltd.
(Note 2)

Non-ferrous
metal
wholesale
business

None Loans or others Overdraft facility
(Execution and
Repayment)
(Note 3)

¥ 200 Loans and bills
discounted

¥ –

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Notes:

1. The interest rate on loans is determined considering the market rate and repayment term is the monthly equal payment
method for 26-30 years.

2. Relative of director of the Bank hold 69% of the ownership.
3. The terms and conditions of the contract are determined considering the market trends. The contract term and the

amount are 1 year and 500 million yen.
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(2) Transactions between the Bank’s subsidiaries and its related parties

(a) Parent company and major shareholders (limited to companies and others)
There were no applicable transactions to be reported for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025.

(b) Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates
There were no applicable transactions to be reported for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025.

(c) Companies that are owned by the same parent company as the Bank (“sister company”) and the Bank’s other affiliates’
subsidiaries

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024
Type Name Location Capital Business Ownerships Relationship Transactions Transaction

amount
(Millions of
Yen)

Account Outstanding
balance
(Millions of
Yen)

Subsidiary
of the
parent

MUFG
Securities
EMEA plc

London,
UK

GBP
1,847,093
thousand

Securities None Securities
transactions
or others

Purchase and
sales of
trading
securities
(Notes 1
and 2)

¥ – – ¥ –

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Notes:

1. Terms and conditions are determined considering the market trends.
2. Transaction amounts are omitted as they are repetitive transactions.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2025
Type Name Location Capital Business Ownerships Relationship Transactions Transaction

amount
(Millions of
Yen)

Account Outstanding
balance
(Millions of
Yen)

Subsidiary
of the
parent

MUFG
Securities
EMEA plc

London,
UK

GBP
1,847,093
thousand

Securities None Securities
transactions
or others

Purchase and
sales of
trading
securities
(Notes 1
and 2)

¥ – – ¥ –

Terms and conditions on transactions and transaction policy:
Notes:

1. Terms and conditions are determined considering the market trends.
2. Transaction amounts are omitted as they are repetitive transactions.

(d) Directors or major shareholders (limited to individual shareholders)
There were no applicable transactions to be reported for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025.

Ⅶ. Information on the parent company or significant equity method investees

(1) Information about the parent company
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. (listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange, Nagoya Stock Exchange and New York Stock
Exchange)

(2) Condensed financial information of significant affiliates
There was no applicable information to be reported for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2024 and 2025.
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1111199999..... PPPPPeeeeerrrrr SSSSShhhhhaaaaarrrrreeeee IIIIInnnnnfffffooooorrrrrmmmmmaaaaatttttiiiiiooooonnnnn

I. Total equity per common share and the bases for the calculation for the periods indicated were as follows:

(in yen)
As of March 31, 2024 As of March 31, 2025

Total equity per common share ¥ 1,074.40 ¥ 1,104.38

(The basis for the calculation) (in millions of yen)
As of March 31, 2024 As of March 31, 2025

Total equity ¥ 13,804,238 ¥ 14,235,938
Deductions from total equity:
Subscription rights to shares 0 11
Non-controlling interests 535,243 596,689

Total equity attributable to common shares ¥ 13,268,994 ¥ 13,639,237

(in thousands)
As of March 31, 2024 As of March 31, 2025

Number of common shares at period end used
for the calculation of total equity per common share 12,350,038 12,350,038

Ⅱ. Basic earnings per common share and diluted earnings per common share and the bases for the calculation for the periods
indicated were as follows:

(in yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025
Basic earnings per common share ¥ 76.49 ¥ 99.74

(The basis for the calculation) (in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025
Net (loss) income attributable to the shareholders of the
Bank ¥ 944,728 ¥ 1,231,880

Net (loss) income attributable to the shareholders of the
Bank related to common shares ¥ 944,728 ¥ 1,231,880

(in thousands)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025
Average number of common shares during the periods 12,350,038 12,350,038

(in yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025
Diluted earnings per common share 76.49 99.74

(The basis for the calculation) (in millions of yen)
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2024
For the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2025
Adjustments to profits attributable to owners of parent ¥ (35) ¥ (24)



93

2222200000..... SSSSSuuuuubbbbbssssseeeeeqqqqquuuuueeeeennnnnttttt EEEEEvvvvveeeeennnnntttttsssss

None.
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2222211111..... BBBBBooooonnnnndddddsssss PPPPPaaaaayyyyyaaaaabbbbbllllleeeee

Bonds payable as of March 31, 2024 and 2025 consisted of the following:
(in millions of yen)

Description Issued 2024 2025
Coupon
rate (%)

Secured or
unsecured Due

TTTTThhhhheeeee BBBBBaaaaannnnnkkkkk:::::
Straight bonds payable in yen Apr. 2007 to

Jul. 2014
¥ 17,200

[8,900]
¥ 8,300 0.63-2.34 Unsecured Apr. 2024 to

Apr. 2027
Senior bonds payable in US$ Mar. 2014 to

Mar. 2015
211,903

(USD 1,400 million)
[151,448]

59,705
(USD 399 million)

3.05-4.70 Unsecured Sep. 2024 to
Mar. 2044

Euro senior bonds payable in US$ May 2015 to
Mar. 2022

838,122
(USD 5,535 million)

857,831
(USD 5,737 million)

0.00 Unsecured May 2045 to
Mar. 2052

Euro senior bonds payable in Euro Sep. 21,2018 7,345
(EUR 45 million)

7,293
(EUR 45 million)

2.71 Unsecured Sep. 21,2033

Subordinated bonds payable in yen Oct. 2009 to
Jun. 2011

176,000 176,000
[62,000]

1.95-2.91 Unsecured Nov. 2025 to
Jan. 2031

SSSSSuuuuubbbbbsssssiiiiidddddiiiiiaaaaarrrrriiiiieeeeesssss*****11111:::::
Short-term corporate bonds Oct. 2024 to

Mar. 2025 —
144,000

[144,000]
0.36-0.64 Unsecured Jan. 2025 to

Jun. 2025
Straight bonds payable Jan. 2019 to

Oct. 2024
308,713

(USD 620 million)
(THB 35,900 million)

(IDR 7,902,600 million)
[115,641]

335,547
(USD 620 million)

(THB 38,400 million)
(IDR 7,548,340 million)

[124,050]

1.12-9.50 *2 Jan. 2024 to
Jun. 2030

Subordinated bonds payable Aug. 1997 to
Jun. 2024

304,087
(USD 56 million)

(THB 60,826 million)
[1,790]

260,626
(USD 46 million)

(THB 52,000 million)
[1,816]

0.52-11.50 Unsecured Jun. 2024 to
Jun. 2034

Total — ¥ 1,863,371 ¥ 1,849,304 — — —

(Notes)
1. *1 Subsidiaries include Mitsubishi UFJ eSmart Securities Co,. Ltd., BTMU (Curacao) Holdings N.V., Bank of Ayudhya Public Company Limited, PT Bank

Danamon Indonesia, Tbk., PT Mandala Multifinance Tbk. and others.
2. *2 10 issues of secured straight bonds issued by consolidated subsidiaries are included. All other issues are unsecured.
3. “( )” represents the amounts expressed in the foreign currencies payable.
4. “[ ]” represents the amounts expected to be redeemed within one year.
5. Annual maturities of bonds payable as of March 31, 2025 were as follows:

Year ending March 31 (in millions of yen)
2026 ¥ 331,866
2027 146,679
2028 36,062
2029 21,494
2030 34,815
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2222222222..... BBBBBooooorrrrrrrrrrooooowwwwweeeeedddddMMMMMooooonnnnneeeeeyyyyy,,,,, LLLLLeeeeeaaaaassssseeeee LLLLLiiiiiaaaaabbbbbiiiiillllliiiiitttttiiiiieeeeesssss aaaaannnnnddddd CCCCCooooommmmmmmmmmeeeeerrrrrccccciiiiiaaaaalllll PPPPPaaaaapppppeeeeerrrrr

“Borrowed money,” “Lease liabilities” and “Commercial paper” as of March 31, 2024 and 2025 were as follows:

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Borrowings from banks and other due 2024-2039 at 1.43% on average ¥ 35,561,966 ¥ 30,505,881
Bills rediscounted － －

Total borrowed money ¥ 35,561,966 ¥ 30,505,881
Lease liabilities due 2024-2036 51,665 51,476

(Notes)
1. The interest rates above are calculated using the weighted-average method based on the interest rates and balances as of March
31. The average interest rate on lease liabilities is not presented above because finance lease liabilities are recorded in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets on the basis of the total amount of lease payments before deduction of interest in
certain consolidated companies.

2. The borrowings above include perpetual subordinated borrowings without the repayment term.
3. The borrowings above include non-recourse debts of a consolidated special purpose entity.

Annual maturities of borrowings as of March 31, 2025 were as follows:
Year ending March 31 (in millions of yen)
2026 ¥ 18,818,333
2027 687,021
2028 2,383,016
2029 1,522,228
2030 681,600

Annual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2025 were as follows:
Year ending March 31 (in millions of yen)
2026 ¥ 9,394
2027 10,403
2028 7,820
2029 5,658
2030 4,181

Since the commercial banking business accepts deposits and raises and manages funds through the call loan and commercial
paper markets in the ordinary course of business, this Note 22 shows details of Borrowed money included in Liabilities and
Lease liabilities included in Other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

(Reference)
“Commercial paper” is issued in the form of promissory notes as a funding operation.

(in millions of yen)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025

Commercial paper at 4.45% on average 2,807,589 3,062,422
2222233333..... AAAAAsssssssssseeeeettttt rrrrreeeeetttttiiiiirrrrreeeeemmmmmeeeeennnnnttttt ooooobbbbbllllliiiiigggggaaaaatttttiiiiiooooonnnnnsssss

Omitted because the amount of asset retirement obligations is not more than one hundredth of the total amount of liabilities and net
assets at the beginning and the end of the current fiscal year.

2222244444..... OOOOOttttthhhhheeeeerrrrr

None.



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

 
 

 
To the Board of Directors of MUFG Bank, Ltd.:  
 
<Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements> 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MUFG Bank, Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the 
"Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, and the 
consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, 
consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the 
years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, and its 
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics in Japan, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities as auditors. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
In our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period, we identified the following 
two matters regarding the "Calculation of the Allowance for Credit Losses in Lending Services" as 
key audit matters. 
 
 

(1) Determination of the internal credit rating for particular borrowers 
(2) Determination of the allowance for credit losses in overseas subsidiaries 

 
 
The "Application of the cash flow estimation method to particular borrower’s loans" and 
“Adjustment to loss rates calculated based on historical loss experience for future loss projections 
and other factors,” which were identified as key audit matters in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the previous period, are not identified as key audit matters in our audit of 



 

the consolidated financial statements of the current period due to the degree of their impact on 
the consolidated financial statements. 

 
Calculation of the Allowance for Credit Losses in Lending Services 
 
The Group is engaged in lending services as one of its core businesses. There is a risk in the 
lending business that the Group incurs a loss from not collecting all or part of the loan amount due 
to credit events such as a borrower's bankruptcy. The Group maintains an allowance for credit 
losses to absorb such a probable loss inherent in the loan portfolio. The amount of the allowance 
for credit losses on the consolidated balance sheet was ¥1,064.5 billion as of March 31, 2025. The 
Group's accounting policy for the allowance for credit losses was disclosed in “IV. Accounting 
policies— (6) Allowance for credit losses” in the Note “1. Significant Accounting Policies Applied to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements” and “Significant Accounting Estimates— I. Allowance for 
credit losses” in the Note “1. Significant Accounting Policies Applied to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements." 
 
The allowance for credit losses is determined in accordance with the internal policies related to the 
self-assessment of asset quality standards and the write-offs and provisions standards and 
approved by the Credit Committee under the Executive Committee. 
 
The calculation process for MUFG Bank, Ltd. (the “Bank”) and its domestic consolidated 
subsidiaries includes various estimates, such as the determination of a borrowers' internal credit 
rating, which are based on the evaluation and classification of the borrowers' debt-service capacity, 
assessment of the value of collateral provided by borrowers, estimation of the future cash flows 
when applying the cash flow estimation method and adjustments to loss rate calculated based on 
historical loss experience for future loss projections and other factors. The Bank recorded a loan 
balance and related allowance for credit losses in the amount of ¥107,742.5 billion and 
¥530.9 billion, respectively, on its balance sheet as of March 31, 2025.  
 
The allowance for credit losses of principal consolidated overseas banking subsidiaries is recorded 
at an amount equal to 12 months or lifetime expected credit losses on loans in accordance with 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The loan balance and related allowance for credit losses measured in 
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards were ¥6,430.3 billion and ¥387.2 billion, respectively. 
 
Key Audit Matter Description 
 
(1) Determination of the internal credit rating for particular borrowers 
 
The determination of borrowers' internal credit rating, which is a significant factor in the calculation 
of the allowance for credit losses, is highly dependent on the estimation of borrowers' future 
performance and business sustainability, particularly in cases in which borrowers are experiencing 
weaknesses in their business performance. As such estimation of particular borrowers' future 
performance and business sustainability is affected by changes in the external and internal 
business environment of borrowers, including changes in global economic condition, inflation, 
monetary and trade policies, and geopolitical situation, there is a high degree of uncertainty and 
subjective judgments made by management involved in the estimate. 
 
(2) Determination of the allowance for credit losses in overseas subsidiaries 
 
Expected credit losses under IFRS Accounting Standards in the principal consolidated overseas 
banking subsidiaries are calculated based on the quantitative model, which reflects future 
projections using economic forecast scenarios including macroeconomic variables. These variables 



 

include, but are not limited to, unemployment rate and GDP that have historically been correlated 
with historical credit losses. As any one economic forecast scenario is inherently uncertain, 
expected credit losses using the quantitative model are determined as a weighted average of the 
expected credit losses calculated for multiple economic forecast scenarios by giving certain 
weightings to each scenario. Furthermore, the calculation of expected credit losses using the 
quantitative model may be adjusted by qualitative factors that are not incorporated into the 
quantitative model (hereinafter referred to as the "qualitative adjustments"). In determining certain 
macroeconomic variables related to the multiple economic forecast scenarios and the weightings 
given to each economic forecast scenario, a variety of factors are taken into consideration such as 
the recent economic conditions and the views of future economic conditions by internal and 
third-party economists. These factors include the estimation of changes in global economic 
condition, inflation, monetary and trade policies, and geopolitical situation. In addition, the 
determination of the qualitative adjustments includes the estimation of the impact of expected credit 
losses based on the quantitative model primarily arising from the inflation and temporary relief 
measure. Each determination is based on the estimation for which objective information is not 
readily available and involves a high degree of estimation uncertainty and subjective judgments 
made by management. 
 
There is a potential risk that the allowance for credit losses will not be appropriately determined if 
the borrowers' credit risks are not reflected in the significant estimates made by management and 
assumptions used in such estimates related to the above (1) and (2). Therefore, we identified the 
appropriateness of these significant estimates and related assumptions as key audit matters. 
 
How the Key Audit Matters Were Addressed in the Audit 
 
For the key audit matters, we performed the following audit procedures, among others: 
 
(1) Determination of the internal credit rating for particular borrowers 
 
• We tested the effectiveness of controls, including the review and approval of the borrowers' 

internal credit rating in accordance with the internal standards. 
 
• We tested the effectiveness of controls over the completeness and accuracy of the key 

information used in performing the aforementioned controls, including the borrowers' underlying 
information. 

 
• For particular borrowers whose internal credit rating is highly dependent on the estimation of 

borrowers' future performance, we tested the appropriateness of the borrowers' underlying 
information to determine the internal credit rating. 

 
• We identified significant assumptions applied by management in the estimation of the borrowers' 

performance, and with the assistance of our or our network firm’s credit specialists (hereinafter 
referred to as "our credit specialists"), we tested such significant assumptions applied by 
management by comparing them with available relevant external information. 

 
(2) Determination of the allowance for credit losses in overseas subsidiaries 
 
• We tested the effectiveness of controls over the determination of the allowance for credit losses 

under IFRS Accounting Standards in accordance with the internal standards, including the 
following: 

 
 The review and approval of the quantitative models and methodologies used in the 



 

measurement of expected credit losses 
 
 The review and approval of certain macroeconomic variables in the multiple economic 

forecast scenarios, and the weightings given to each scenario 
 
 The review and approval of the qualitative adjustments 
 

• We tested the effectiveness of controls over the completeness and accuracy of the key 
information used in performing the aforementioned controls. 

 
• With the assistance of our credit specialists, we evaluated the appropriateness of the quantitative 

models and methodologies used in the measurement of expected credit losses by assessing the 
conceptual soundness and model performance by inspecting model documentation as well as 
reperforming model performance testing to determine whether the models operated as intended. 

 
• With the assistance of our credit specialists, we evaluated the reasonableness of certain 

macroeconomic variables in multiple economic forecast scenarios, such as unemployment rate 
and GDP, and the reasonableness of the weightings given to each scenario by comparing to 
macroeconomic forecasts from available external sources. 

 
• With the assistance of our credit specialists, we evaluated the reasonableness of the use of 

qualitative adjustments to modeled results and tested significant assumptions applied by 
management by comparing them to available relevant external information. 

 
Other Information 
 
Other information comprises the information included in the Group's disclosure documents 
accompanying the audited consolidated financial statements, but does not include the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
 
We determined that no such information existed and therefore, we did not perform any work 
thereon. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and the Audit and Supervisory Committee for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Audit and Supervisory Committee is responsible for overseeing the Directors' execution of 
duties relating to the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over the Group’s financial 
reporting process. 
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 



 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in Japan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment. In addition, we obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 
• Obtain, when performing risk assessment procedures, an understanding of internal control relevant 

to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate whether the overall presentation and disclosures of the consolidated financial statements 

are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, as well as the overall 
presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
• Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 

financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an 
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible 
for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with the Audit and Supervisory Committee regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 



 

We also provide the Audit and Supervisory Committee with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with it all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied 
 
. 
 
From the matters communicated with the Audit and Supervisory Committee, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication 
 
.  
 
<Fee-Related Information> 
 
Fees for audit and other services for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, which were 
charged by us and our network firms to the Bank and its subsidiaries were ¥5,280 million and ¥289 
million, and ¥5,113 million and ¥386 million, respectively. 
 

Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan 
 
Our firm and its designated engagement partners do not have any interest in the Group which is 
required to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan. 
 
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LLC 
Tokyo, Japan 
June 24, 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notes to the Reader of Independent Auditor’s Report:  
This is a copy of the Independent Auditor’s Report and the original copies are kept separately by 
the Company and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC. 
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